2007 Los Angeles County Health Survey – Summary of Survey Methodology –

conducted by

Field Research Corporation

for the



Los Angeles County Department of Public Health

June 2008



601 CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 900, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94108 PHONE (415) 392-5763 FAX (415) 434-2541 AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	1
Populations of Interest and Study Design	2
Sample Frame	3
Sampling	3
Questionnaire Development	5
Structure and Content of the Adult Survey Questionnaire	
Adult Survey Screener	
Respondent Selection Procedures	6
Adult Survey Main Questionnaire	
Additional Questions Asked of Subsamples of Adults	
Structure and Content of the Child Survey Questionnaire	11
Survey Screener	
Respondent and child selection procedures	
Child Survey Questionnaire	
Survey Languages	
Translation and Translation Review	
Questionnaire Programming	16
Pre-testing and Pilot Test	17
Telephone Interviewing Facilities	18
Interviewer Recruitment and Training	
Pre-Approach Letter	20
Study Auspices and Confidentiality	21
Availability of Field's Toll-Free Telephone Number	21
Sample Management	22
Number of Call Attempts	22
Refusals and Refusal Conversion Procedures	23
Interviewing Dates	24
Disposition of Interview Attempts – Adult Survey	24
Disposition of Call Attempts – Child Survey	
Discussion of Response Rates	
Data Processing	30
Geo-coding	
Database Construction and File Preparation	
Statistical Weighting	
Stage 1: Construction of the household weights	33
Stage 2: Construction of the population weights	
Stage 3: Population projections	
Delivery of Final Data Files.	
Appendices	
Adult Survey Questionnaire (main)follo	
Adult Survey Subsample Questions	0
Child Survey Questionnaire	
Pre-Approach Letter Bookletfolle	owing

Introduction

The 2007 Los Angeles County Health Survey (LACHS) was commissioned by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health and conducted by Field Research Corporation (Field), an independent California-based opinion research organization. Founded in 1945 by Mervin Field, Field is one of the oldest and most respected full-service opinion research firms with headquarters in the Western United States. Field specializes in conducting surveys in the areas of health, public policy and social research among national, state, regional and local populations, as well as among special populations.

The 2007 LACHS expanded upon four previous LACHS studies conducted for the County by Field in 1997, 1999-2000, 2002-2003 and 2005. The overall objectives of each LACHS have been to provide the County with accurate and reliable measurements tracking health status, health conditions, access to care, use of preventive health services, and health-related behaviors among the populations of Los Angeles County adults and children. The survey also enables the County to collect and analyze information on a wide range of other health and health policy topics to provide health planners, policymakers, community leaders and ultimately the public itself with information that bear on the health of County residents.

The sample sizes of each LACHS are large enough to enable the survey results to be projectable countywide and within a wide array of regional, demographic and health-related subgroups of the County's adult and child populations.

Field was responsible for providing advice and assistance to the County in developing the survey questionnaires for both the Adult Survey and the Child Survey, translating them into five non-English languages, programming each version of the questionnaire onto Field's computer-assisted telephone interviewing (CATI) or its web-based MR Interviewer system, conducting pre-testing and pilot testing of the instruments, sampling, data collection, data processing, developing appropriate statistical weights and the delivery of data files and accompanying documentation to the County upon the study's completion.

Populations of Interest and Study Design

The LACHS is a population-based telephone survey of Los Angeles County households. It is structured to examine two separate and distinct populations within Los Angeles County. These populations include:

- Los Angeles County adults: The Adult Survey is a projectable countywide sampling of adults age 18 or older living in Los Angeles County. Households are selected using a random digit dial (RDD) sampling methodology. Within each household, interviews are conducted by telephone with one randomly selected adult. The 2007 LACHS included interviews with a total sample of 7,200 adults. This included 6,948 interviews completed among a countywide sample of adults and 252 interviews conducted as part of an augmented sample of adults living in the County's least populated Antelope Valley Service Planning Area (SPA).
- Los Angeles County children: The Child Survey is a projectable countywide sampling of Los Angeles County children ages 0-17. The survey is conducted by telephone with the child's parent or primary caregiver (typically the mother) who lives in the same household as the child. The 2007 survey included interviews with a countywide sample of 5,288 parents/caregivers, plus augmented samples of 238 parents/caregivers living in the county's Antelope Valley SPA and 202 parents/caregivers living in the county's West SPA. The samples of parents/caregivers interviewed as part of the Child Survey were developed from two sources.
 - <u>Phase One</u>: Phase One included follow-up interviews conducted in households that participated in the Adult Survey where a child age 0-17 resided. Follow-up interviews were completed with the same respondent if the survey respondent was the parent/caregiver of a child under in that household. In child households where the original adult interviewed as part of the Adult Survey was not the parent/caregiver, the name of the parent/caregiver was sought and callbacks were made to attempt to reach and interview that individual during a follow-up call. Data from households completing both the Adult Survey and Child Survey were linked in data processing to facilitate additional data analysis possibilities.

<u>Phase Two</u>: Additional interviews with parents/caregivers in Phase Two were developed from a random digit dial (RDD) sampling of County households. Households reached through the RDD sampling process were screened for the presence of children under age 18. Once identified, the parent/caregiver of one of the children age 0-17 living in the household was interviewed.

Sample Frame

The sample frame for the 2007 LACHS included Los Angeles County households, defined as including all houses, apartments, and mobile homes occupied by individuals, families, multiple families or extended families or occupied by multiple unrelated persons with access to a residential (landline) telephone. Excluded from this definition are communes, convents, shelters, halfway houses or dormitories, institutionalized persons, such as those living in prisons, jails, juvenile detention facilities, psychiatric hospitals, military barracks, residential treatment programs and nursing homes for the disabled or aged, the homeless, as well as households without access to a landline telephone. Statistical weighting procedures were employed in the data processing phases of both the Adult Survey and the Child Survey to reduce any biases associated with the exclusion of households without telephones or without access to a landline telephone.

Sampling

Random samples of Los Angeles County households were generated using a random digit dial (RDD) sampling methodology. For the 2007 LACHS, as was the case for each prior LACHS conducted by Field, samples of RDD telephone listings were purchased from Survey Sampling, Inc. (SSI), a leading supplier of telephone samples to the survey research industry. The specific sampling product purchased was SSI's "Random A" sample for Los Angeles County.

Survey Sampling's "Random A" sample consists of a single-stage, equal probability sample systematically selected from all eligible 10-digit telephone numbers assigned to the county. The sampling frame for LACHS consisted of all possible numbers in active blocks of 100 telephone numbers. All county numbers are grouped into blocks of 100 telephone numbers, each sharing

the same first 8 digits. For example, the telephone number 555-708-6677 is made up of the area code 555, the telephone exchange 708, and the last four digits 6677. This would fall into the 100-block 555-708-6600 through 555-708-6699.

Only those 100-blocks that were found to have at least 3 directory-listed numbers were eligible for inclusion in the LACHS sampling frame. Business phone numbers identified from the Dun and Bradstreet and InfoUSA Yellow Page databases were included in the sampling frame, but were not eligible for selection.

For 2007, Los Angeles County had 76,079 100-blocks. Each had 100 possible/eligible numbers for a frame total of 7,607,900 possible/eligible numbers. To randomly select which numbers would be dialed, a sampling interval (I) was calculated by dividing the number of eligible units (N) by the desired number of sample units (n). A random number (r) between zero and one was generated and multiplied by the sampling interval to calculate a random starting point K(1) between one and the sampling interval. (e.g.)

N=7607900
n=40000
I= (N/n) = (7607900/40000) =190.1975
r=.2049525847
$$k(1) = Ir = 38.6871$$

When accumulation reached the random starting point, the unique 10-digit telephone number represented by that point was selected and written to the sample file. The next sampling point [k(n+1) = k(n)+I] was then determined, and accumulation of sampling units (or telephone numbers) continued until the next sampling point was reached. Telephone numbers, each representing a unique Primary Sampling Unit, were systematically selected in this fashion until the required number of sampling units was achieved. (e.g.)

$$k(1) = Ir = 38.6871$$

$$k(2) = k(1) + I = 38.6871 + 190.1975 = 228.8846$$

$$k(3) = k(2) + I = 228.8846 + 190.1975 = 419.0621$$

... k(40000)

Augmented samples of RDD listings developed for the Adult Survey in the County's Antelope Valley SPA and for the Child Survey in the County's Antelope Valley or West SPAs were also purchased from Survey Sampling, Inc.'s Random A sample file, but were limited to the telephone exchanges serving only those cities, towns and zip codes within each specified SPA.

Questionnaire Development

Two questionnaires were developed for the 2007 LACHS, one for the Adult Survey and a second for the Child Survey. Many of the questions used in each survey were taken verbatim from previous LACHS studies or from other established state and national health surveys to permit direct comparisons or trend assessments over time. In addition, as was the case in each previous LACHS, new questions were developed to meet the Public Health Department's evolving opinion research needs.

County staff persons were responsible for the initial development of both the Adult Survey and Child Survey questionnaires. However, Field provided input and assistance to the County throughout the questionnaire development period, including advice on question wording, the sequencing of items, the creation of skip patterns or go-to sequences, as well as other matters relating to the development and finalization of each questionnaire. Field's overriding objective in this phase was to maintain an internal structure and coherence to the questioning to facilitate easy administration by telephone, to enhance respondent cooperation, and to ensure the meaningfulness and validity of survey responses. This questionnaire development phase involved numerous iterations of draft survey instruments exchanged between the County and Field before a penultimate survey instrument was deemed ready for preliminary testing.

Structure and Content of the Adult Survey Questionnaire

The following is a summary of the structure and general content areas of the 2007 Adult Survey questionnaire.

Adult Survey Screener

The Adult Survey included an initial series of screening questions devised to identify eligible households in the County and select one adult within each household to interview.

In the initial dialing of RDD telephone numbers, the interviewer first sought to ascertain whether the number dialed was in fact a household. Once a household was contacted, the interviewer introduced himself or herself to the household spokesperson and described the overall purposes of the call and its sponsorship. The survey screener then posed a number of specific questions to determine the eligibility of the household for the Adult Survey. The content of these questions sought to:

- 1. Verify that the household was located within Los Angeles County
- 2. Ascertain whether one or more adults age 18 or older lived in the household
- 3. Randomly select one adult age 18 or older to interview for the survey using a systematic respondent selection procedure.
- 4. Determine the preferred language of approach for that adult

If the randomly selected adult was someone other than the household spokesperson initially contacted, the interviewer re-introduced himself or herself to this other adult, reviewing once again the overall purposes of the call and its sponsorship. Other pertinent information about the survey was provided at this time, as necessary, including the fact that their household's telephone number had been randomly generated by computer, that the survey was confidential, and that all answers given would not be identified with them or their household in any way. Upon request, respondents were also provided with the telephone number at Field and/or the County Health Department to verify the authenticity of the survey or seek additional information.

Respondent Selection Procedures

Field employed a probabilistic respondent selection procedure that minimizes the use of intrusive questions that can negatively affect survey participation while attempting to give all adult residents in the household an equal chance of being selected. This procedure begins by asking the household spokesperson how many adults reside within the household and takes advantage of the fact that approximately three-quarters of all County households have only one or two adults in residence. In households where only one adult resides, no respondent selection procedure is required, and interviews were attempted with that adult. In households where two adults were

found to reside, CATI randomly selected either the initial adult contacted or the household's other adult. In households where three or more adults resided, CATI first determined whether the adult being screened should be the randomly selected respondent after giving each adult an equal chance of being selected. If that adult was not selected, then the "most recent birthday" method was used to identify which of the other household adults should be the selected respondent. Once an adult was selected, repeated attempts were made to reach and complete an interview with that individual.

Adult Survey Main Questionnaire

Once the designated adult had been selected, that individual was asked to participate in the survey. The Adult Survey instrument consisted of a core set of more than 200 questions, although not all questions were applicable to all respondents. The average length of administration time for this core set of questions was 28 minutes, and ranged from an average of 26 minutes in English to 32 minutes in the non-English languages.

The topic areas included in the Adult Survey's core set of questions were as follows:

- 1. <u>*Health status:*</u> An initial series of questions to determine the respondents' overall health and general physical and mental well-being.
- 2. <u>Nutrition, body mass and diet:</u> Several questions asked about the respondents' weight and height, their fruit and vegetable intake, and their frequency of eating at fast food restaurants.
- 3. <u>*Health conditions:*</u> This section asked whether various health conditions applied to the respondents, including heart conditions, diabetes, high blood pressure, high cholesterol, and depressive disorders.
- 4. <u>Mental health and treatments/counseling for addictions:</u> Questions then determined whether respondents reported having symptoms of mental or emotional disorders, as well as whether they had received any treatment or counseling for substance abuse or addictions.
- 5. <u>Disabilities and caregiving to persons with a disability</u>: An initial set of questions was included to determine whether respondents had a long-term impairment or disability

lasting three months or longer. Another set of questions asked whether respondents provided care to anyone who had a disability or long-term illness, and if so, asked about the extent of care provided, the nature of the illness and characteristics of the person being cared for.

- <u>Employment, daily activities and exercise</u>: These items asked about the respondents' employment status and also the extent to which they engaged in vigorous or moderate exercises or activities during a usual week.
- 7. <u>Emergency preparedness</u>: Questions in this section asked respondents whether they had sufficient food and water supplies to sustain their household in the event of a disaster such as an earthquake, fire or terrorist attack, and whether they were aware of 211, the county's health information help line.
- 8. <u>*Health insurance:*</u> This section ascertained whether respondents currently had health insurance or were covered under any kind of health care plan, and if so, what type of coverage this was.
- <u>Barriers to accessing health care:</u> Questions in this section sought to identify barriers to receiving medical care when it was needed, including affordability and transportation. Other items queried respondents about their usual source of care and when they last visited a doctor or dentist.
- 10. <u>Preventive health care:</u> These questions asked about the respondents' use of preventive services, such as having their blood pressure or cholesterol checked, undergoing a pap smear or mammogram (among women), and receiving flu shots (among adults age 50 or older), or pneumonia shots (among adults age 65 or older). Other questions probed respondent awareness of human papilloma virus (HPV), and among women aware of HPV, asked whether they had received or were likely to receive HPV vaccination in the future.
- 11. <u>Tobacco use and exposure</u>: This section explored the extent of past and present tobacco use by respondents, including efforts to quit smoking (among smokers) and exposure to another's smoking (among non-smokers).

- 12. <u>Alcohol consumption</u>: Those who reported having consumed alcohol in the past month were asked about their extent of alcohol use and frequency of binge drinking in the past month.
- 13. <u>Methamphetamines:</u> Questions asked respondents whether they had ever used methamphetamines and obtained respondent perceptions of the seriousness of methamphetamine use in their community.
- 14. <u>Sexual behavior, AIDS/HIV risk and contraception</u>: Respondents were asked questions about their sexual behavior, and among those sexually active, about their use of condoms and other birth control, including the morning-after pill. Respondents were also asked whether they had been tested for HIV in the past two years and the circumstances surrounding this test.
- 15. <u>Demographic Questions</u>: This section obtained basic demographic questions about the respondent and his/her household, including age, sex, race/ethnicity, education, income, place of birth, sexual orientation, education level, marital status, household size and composition, language spoken most in the household, internet access, city of residence, zip code and household address or the two closest cross streets to their home.

Additional Questions Asked of Subsamples of Adults

In addition, the Adult Survey sample was subdivided into seven random subsamples, and respondents within each subsample were asked an additional series of questions averaging 2-3 minutes. This provided the County with survey information on a wide range of topics from random samples of approximately 1,000 adults each.

The topics covered in these random subsamples included the following:

<u>Health program effectiveness, health information sources and the built environment:</u> This section measured perceptions of the effectiveness of different types of public health programs and services and respondents' primary health-related information sources. Additional questions probed accessibility to public transit, the number of vehicles owned, and their usual form of transportation for short errands within one mile of their home.

- 2. <u>Nutrition</u>: These items measured respondent perceptions of how healthy their diet was, their healthiest weight, the number of sodas or sweetened drinks they consume, their perceptions of the number of calories in common foods and drinks, perceptions about the dangers of trans fats and their opinion of various public policy proposals relating to diet and nutrition.
- 3. <u>Pets, sleep and HIV/STD testing</u>: This series included questions about the prevalence of pet ownership and types of pets, hours of sleep usually obtained and the number of hours of sleep respondents thought they needed. Other question probed opinions about HIV and STD testing, reports of having been tested for STDs or being told by a health professional that they should be tested for STDs. This section also included a question on whether respondents had served time in a correctional facility.
- 4. <u>Methamphetamines and alcopops:</u> This section asked about respondent knowledge of persons who have used methamphetamines and their general awareness and perceptions of the drug. Also included were measures of the usage of alcopops, awareness of alcopop advertising, and reactions to public policy proposals having to do with alcopops.
- 5. <u>Tobacco policy</u>: This series asked about the perceived dangers of tobacco use, exposure to second-hand smoke and smoking among minors. Other questions examined respondents' support for restrictions on tobacco sales, cessation programs and smoking bans in various venues. This section also queried respondents about their type of housing and home ownership.
- 6. <u>*Pandemic flu:*</u> Questions in this series measured how respondents would respond to the outbreak of pandemic flu, their ability to shelter in place for extended periods, and ability to care for household members who got sick during a pandemic flu outbreak.
- 7. <u>Child health policy</u>: This section asked respondents to assess the quality of their community as a place to raise children, their opinions about factors affecting child development and their awareness of First Five L.A.

The Adult Survey's English-language screener and core questionnaire, as well as its seven additional subsample sections, are included in the Appendix section of this report.

Structure and Content of the Child Survey Questionnaire

Survey Screener

As part of Phase One of data collection for the Child Survey, participants in the Adult Survey in which one or more children under age 18 resided were asked a series of questions at the conclusion of that interview to identify the mother or other parent/caregiver of one or more children ages 0-17 living in the household. If the original adult interviewed was the parent/caregiver, attempts were made to either continue the interview or to schedule a callback at a later time. If the parent/caregiver was not the person participating in the Adult Survey, attempts were made to either transfer the call to the appropriate parent/caregiver at that time or arrange a convenient time to call back to reach that person.

During Phase Two of the Child Survey, a random sample of County households was screened for the presence of children, and interviews were completed with the parent/caregiver of one randomly selected child in that household. The following information was sought from the household spokesperson as part of the screener for this portion of the Child Survey:

- 1. Confirm that the household was located within Los Angeles County.
- 2. Ascertain whether a child under age 18 lived in the household.
- 3. Ask to speak to a parent/caregiver (typically the mother) of the child or children living in the household.
- 4. Determine the preferred language of the parent/caregiver.

Once the parent/caregiver was identified and reached, the interviewer introduced himself or herself (if necessary) describing the overall purposes of the call and the survey's sponsor. Other pertinent information about the survey was provided as necessary, including the fact that the household's telephone number had been randomly generated by computer, the survey was confidential, and that all answers given would not be identified with them or their child in any way. Upon request, parents/caregivers were also provided with the telephone number at Field, and/or the County Health Department to verify the authenticity of the survey or seek additional information.

Respondent and child selection procedures

The 2007 LACHS followed the same procedures used in previous Child Surveys with regard to the identification and recruitment of the parent/caregiver of children under age 18 within each

household. In Phase One, at the conclusion of the Adult Survey respondents were asked a series of questions to identify the mother of one or more of the children residing in the household. If the child's mother did not reside in that household, the interviewer then asked to speak to the child's other parent, or the child's primary caregiver. In households where multiple families resided, a random selection procedure ("most recent birthday" method) was employed for selecting which parent/caregiver to interview. Similar respondent selection procedures were followed for identifying parents/caregivers in Phase Two of the Child Survey sampling, after a child household had been identified.

One other selection procedure that was integral to the Child Survey was the random selection of the designated child about whom the parent/caregiver would be discussing. Similar to the procedures followed in prior LACHS Child Surveys, the 2007 LACHS utilized the "most recent birthday" method for randomly selecting one child to discuss in households where multiple children resided.

Child Survey Questionnaire

The parent/caregiver was then administered the Child Survey questionnaire. The Child Survey also included over 200 questions, although many of them were specific to children of certain age groupings. Somewhat longer interviews were conducted when the child being referenced was age 0–5, while shorter interviews were conducted among parents with children age 6–17. In addition, because some of the demographic characteristics of respondents and households included in the Child Survey were captured as part of the Adult Survey Phase One, follow-up interviews were generally shorter than those completed as part of Phase Two. Because of this, the average interview length of the Child Survey ranged from 17-25 minutes depending on the age of the child, with an overall average of 21 minutes. This overall average also varied by language of the interview, with English language interviews averaging 18 minutes and those conducted in non-English languages averaging 23 minutes.

The 2007 Child Survey questionnaire was structured to include the following sections and topics:

 <u>Child selection and background questions</u>: The section obtained information about the number of children in the household and then randomly selected one child under age 18 as the designated child for the survey. Basic background information about the child was obtained, including the child's gender, age and whether each female respondent was that child's biological mother.

- Infant questions: This section of questions was administered to parents/caregivers whose randomly selected child was a child age 0-5. It included items about preconception knowledge, breastfeeding practices (among biological mothers), reasons for discontinuing breast feeding and employment of the mother during the child's early years.
- 3. <u>Daily activities and family interactions:</u> Parents/caregivers were asked questions having to do with day-to-day activities that occur within the household, such as the number of days a family member reads, tells stories or plays music or sing with the child.
- 4. <u>*Nutrition:*</u> This section included questions about the number of days in a typical week that the child eats breakfast, how frequently the child east food from fast food restaurants and the number of sodas or sweetened drinks the child consumes in a typical day.
- 5. <u>Physical activity</u>: Parents/caregivers were asked the number of hours in an average day the child spends watching TV, using a computer or playing video games at home. Another series of questions probed how often the child did various physical activities, such as walking, biking, or skateboarding to school, playing a team sport, participating in bicycling, rollerblading or skateboarding, playing physically interactive games or going to classes to do gymnastics, dance, karate, or similar activities. Parents/caregivers were also asked to assess their community as place to be physically active, as well as their access to parks, playgrounds or other places where the child could play.
- 6. <u>Health conditions</u>: After obtaining an assessment of the child's overall health, various questions were asked regarding whether a doctor or health professional had ever told the parent/caregiver if their child had attention deficit disorder, autism, diabetes or asthma. In cases where one or more of the health conditions were reported, follow-up questions were posed about the child's condition. Additional questions determined whether the child might have undiagnosed asthma.
- 7. <u>Childcare:</u> Parents/caregivers who were discussing a child under age six were asked a series of questions about the childcare arrangements used and any difficulties they had in

finding or paying for such care. Measures were also obtained as to their awareness and specific knowledge of the organization, First 5 L.A.

- 8. <u>Pandemic flu:</u> Questions were posed asking parents/caregivers about the difficulties they had in arranging care for their child for various lengths of time should there be an outbreak of pandemic flu and the child's school or child care facility was closed.
- 9. <u>Health insurance</u>: Parents/caregivers were asked whether their child was currently covered by health insurance or any other kind of health care plan, and if so, what type of coverage they had. For those children without health insurance, questions were asked about the parent's/caregiver's awareness of government insurance programs, such as Medi-Cal, Healthy Families and Healthy Kids, and whether the parent/caregiver thought their child was eligible for any of these programs.
- 10. <u>Use of health services and preventive care, barriers to accessing health care:</u> Questions in this section asked parents about their usual source of health care for the child and the child's last visit to a dentist. A number of questions sought to identify barriers to the child receiving medical care, including cost, transportation, and language difficulties. Awareness of Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) was also determined. If the designated child was a female age 9 or older, the parent was asked whether the child had received HPV vaccination or was likely to receive such shots in the future, and if not, what the reasons were for not vaccinating.
- 11. <u>Parental support and mental health</u>: Various questions in this section asked parents about their access to people who could provide them with advice when they had encountered problems in raising their child. Other questions asked parents about their own social support systems, mental health and use of mental health services.
- 12. <u>Smoking and second-hand smoke</u>: Questions in this section probed whether the mother/primary caregiver smoked, the exposure of their child to smokers in the home and the rules of the house regarding where and when smoking is allowed.
- 13. <u>*Child demographics:*</u> This section contained various demographic questions about the child not asked previously in the survey, including race/ethnicity and place of birth.

14. <u>Parent demographics</u>: This section included questions pertaining to the demographic characteristics of the parent/caregiver and the household itself, including education, income, marital status, employment status of the respondent and her spouse, language used most in the home, place of birth, household size and composition, city of residence, zip code and street address or closest intersections to their home.

The English-language versions of the Child Survey questionnaire is included in the Appendix section of this report.

Survey Languages

Because of the heavily multi-ethnic makeup of Los Angeles County and the relatively high proportion of residents who speak little or no English, the 2007 LACHS was administered in English, Spanish, Chinese (Cantonese and Mandarin), Korean, and Vietnamese. Over one-quarter (26%) of all adults interviewed as part of the 2007 LACHS were completed in non-English languages, while over four in ten (43%) of all parents/caregivers were interviewed in a non-English language as part of the Child Survey.

Translation and Translation Review

The processes employed by Field in the development of the translations for the 2007 LACHS involved the participation of a number of parties and Field staff oversight. The first step in this process involved compiling all the translations from the 2005 LACHS surveys of identical questions that were being reported as part of the 2007 LACHS. These translations were copied forward and incorporated into the 2007 questionnaires to assure direct comparability with prior measures.

Initial translations for all new or revised survey questions were prepared for Field by a Palo Altobased professional translation service. These translations were then reviewed by an independent third party. In the case of the Spanish and Mandarin questionnaires, County staff persons fluent in each language served this role. For the remaining languages an Oakland-based professional translation service specializing in Asian language translations was employed. The translation process leading to the development of the pre-approach letter followed a similar path.

In addition, at the County's direction, at the conclusion of this process, all Asian language translations were forwarded to another Los Angles-based translation service for final review and where appropriate, additional edits were incorporated into the translations.

Questionnaire Programming

The English and Spanish language versions of the survey questionnaire were then programmed onto Field's computer-assisted telephone interviewing (CATI), while the Mandarin, Cantonese, Korean and Vietnamese language versions were programmed onto Field's web-based counterpart, MR Interviewer.

Both the CATI and MR Interviewer systems control the telephone scripts read to individual respondents by displaying each appropriate questionnaire item one at a time on computer screens at each interviewer's booth. The interviewer then reads each question aloud to the respondent from the screen and enters the pre-coded answer category through the keyboard directly to computer disk. All answers are automatically stored in computer memory. This allows for greater consistency in interviewing by controlling all skip patterns, branches, randomization of items in a battery, "refer backs," and other control features during the call. It also affords greater opportunities for internal control since the development and programming of the questionnaires remain under the direct control and supervision of the project coordinator.

These systems also enable the questionnaires to be personalized, as needed. For example, for the Child Survey questionnaire, the system has the capability of inserting the name of the randomly selected child into each survey question applicable to that child. (e.g., What is $\langle NAME's \rangle$ age?) This frees the interviewer to concentrate on his or her interviewing technique and insures a clear and unambiguous questioning process. In addition to sequencing and personalizing questions, the CATI and MR Interviewer systems perform various quality control functions, including online editing. One such function rejects ineligible codes entered by an interviewer to all pre-coded questions. For example, if there are only two eligible codes to a question (e.g., Yes = 1 and No = 2), if an interviewer attempts to enter a "0" or other inappropriate number, it is rejected. For

items that seek a numeric reply, each system rejects data falling outside acceptable ranges. For example, when asking about a child's age, any number greater than 17 was rejected. In such instances, the interviewer would then recheck the child's exact age with the respondent before proceeding to the next question or terminate the interview if the child was not under age 18. The capability to incorporate sequencing and logic checks was crucial to the interview, tailoring each survey and survey question to each respondent's unique situation through this questionnaire sequencing process.

Once the programming was completed, the script from each questionnaire in each language was reviewed on-line by Field staff persons to check all questions, response alternatives, and skip patterns.

Pre-testing and Pilot Test

Once penultimate versions of the Adult Survey and Child Survey questionnaires had been prepared and had been programmed, Field conducted an initial pre-test of the survey questionnaires in English and Spanish by calling small samples of households in Los Angeles County. Several pre-tests were staged. Each was designed to assess general ease of administration, refine item wording, and provide an initial assessment of its average length of administration of each questionnaire. These calls were monitored by the Project Coordinator, Field staff supervisors and, whenever possible, were remotely monitored by representatives of the County. Changes were made to the questionnaire, as appropriate, following each pre-test.

A more formal pilot test was then conducted among approximately 100 County households using the Adult Survey and Child Survey questionnaires that emerged from pre-testing. The pilot test was designed to employ the same survey procedures and to test all survey protocols to be used in full-scale data collection. It also provided an opportunity to test each of the seven subsample question series developed for the Adult Survey. County representatives again participated in the pilot testing process by monitoring interviews remotely, along with the Project Coordinator and Field staff supervisors. Upon completion of the pilot test, Field conducted a de-briefing with the pilot test interviewers and supervisors who, along with County representatives, provided final feedback relating to the survey instruments. Changes resulting from the pilot tests and debriefings were then incorporated into each survey questionnaire as appropriate.

Telephone Interviewing Facilities

Data collection for the 2007 LACHS was completed from Field's central location interviewing centers in San Francisco and San Diego as well as from Field's headquarters office in San Francisco.

In each calling facility, trained interviewers did the calling from individual sound-protected telephone stations under the full-time supervision of staff monitors. All stations in each call center were equipped with CATI for administering the survey's English and Spanish language interviews. All Asian language interviewing was administered using Field's web-based MR Interviewer system from Field's San Francisco headquarters. Each of these installations offers remote as well as on-site monitoring capabilities, where staff supervisors, the project team and clients can listen in to monitor and evaluate the interviewing in progress.

Interviewer Recruitment and Training

Field's employed a total of 162 interviewers to complete the 2007 LACHS calling effort. At the beginning of the data collection period, Field's staff of English language and bilingual English and Spanish language interviewers were trained to conduct the initial data collection. As the interviewing proceeded, additional training sessions were held to expand the number of English language and bilingual English and Spanish language interviewing staff, and to incorporate bilingual and trilingual Asian-language staff. Over the course of interviewing, households requiring Spanish or Asian language callbacks were identified and grouped together for callback attempts by in-language interviewers. Spanish language callbacks were conducted on an ongoing basis throughout the data collection period. The Asian language callbacks were accumulated and called back toward the end of the data collection period to make the interviewing time spent by the Asian language staff as efficient as possible.

Field is fully cognizant of the role that the interviewer plays in obtaining accurate and reliable survey data and recognizes the critical importance of not allowing the interview experience itself to potentially bias the results. As such, all of the interviewing conducted by Field meets the best practice standards for survey research established by the industry's leading professional associations. In addition, all full-time staff working on the project have undergone HIPAA training to ensure that proper confidentiality procedures are followed.

Some of the training procedures employed by Field to assure high quality and uniform telephone interviewing practices among its interviewing staff throughout the conduct of the 2007 LACHS are described below:

An interviewer training course provided interviewers with both general and specific interviewing instructions, refresher reviews and on-line monitoring of telephone interviewing. This includes an introduction to survey research, a description of interviewer roles and responsibilities, general interviewing techniques and record keeping, refusal conversion techniques, and confidentiality procedures. In addition, procedures were reviewed for the proper management of non-English speaking households.

At the conclusion of their training, interviewers conducted mock interviews, and Field's professional interviewing supervisors evaluated their performance.

Before the start of data collection, all interviewers working on the study were required to attend a briefing session where specific calling procedures were described in detail by the Project Coordinator or by survey staff supervisors. These sessions provided interviewers with an overview of the LACHS and included a question-by-question review of all items in each survey. The sessions discussed recommended best-practice approaches for dealing with different interviewing situations, specifics on how to document the results of each contact attempt, the scheduling of callbacks, and confidentiality requirements.

Debriefings and retraining sessions were held as necessary to ensure that all interviewers were following consistent procedures. The performance of each member of the interviewing team was closely monitored and evaluated, especially during the first few days of interviewing. In addition, from time to time interviewers were asked to meet together as a group to discuss their interviewing experiences on the project.

Throughout the interviewing period "data correction sheets" were available to all interviewers to note inadvertent errors or respondent changes to answers after the initial recording of a response was entered during the interview.

Pre-Approach Letter

For the Adult Survey an advance letter was sent to each of the RDD sample listings where a matching household address could be found. The advance mailing included a one-page letter printed on Los Angeles County Public Health Department letterhead and signed by the Director. Because the language spoken in each household was not known in advance, the letter was translated into Spanish, Chinese, Korean and Vietnamese languages and printed along with the English version as a four-page booklet. The booklet, as well as its outer envelope, was printed on Los Angeles County Public Health Department stationery.

The letter briefly explained the purposes of the survey and informed each household that it had been selected to participate in an important survey on health that the department was conducting. The letter informed each household that they should expect to receive a call from a telephone interviewer in the next couple weeks. The letter also referenced the telephone number of the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health's Office of Health Assessment and Epidemiology as well as a website for households wanting more information or having any specific questions. A copy of the advanced letter can be found in the Appendix section of this report.

Mailings of the booklet letter were staggered throughout the data collection period with the goal of timing the mail-out letters so that households would receive them in advance of the first telephone call attempt to the household. In total, approximately 30,000 booklet letters were mailed prior to telephone attempts to the Adult Survey.

After the letter distribution had taken place, it came to the County's attention that some transcription errors had been made by the printer in the reproduction of the Vietnamese language version of the letter. In reaction to this, a full-page ad was placed in the County's largest Vietnamese language newspaper, the *Saigon Times*, on two separate occasions to inform the Vietnamese community of the printing mistake and displaying a corrected version of the letter in the ad. The ad sought to encourage those who received the letter to participate in the survey, was

run under the caption, "Your Opinion Counts," and was printed under County Public Health Department letterhead and signed by the Director.

One of the main reasons for incorporating a pre-approach letter into the 2007 LACHS was to attempt to stimulate survey cooperation. This appears to have been the case, since the cooperation rate of households mailed the pre-approach letter was nine percentage points higher (47%) than those who were not mailed the letter or whose letter was returned as undeliverable (38%). However, is also possible that the demographic differences between the population of households for which address listings could be found and those for which address listings were not available may also have contributed to the differential in cooperation rates.

Study Auspices and Confidentiality

At the beginning of each call in which a household was reached, the household spokesperson answering the phone was told that the study was being conducted on behalf of the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health. Those who wanted to verify the survey's auspices were provided with a contact telephone number within the Public Health Department where they could obtain additional information. To maintain confidentiality and maximize cooperation, residents were also assured that their answers to all questions were voluntary and confidential and that no personal information given during the survey would be individually identified with them. During the data collection and data processing phases, access to all respondent information was carefully controlled and restricted internally at Field through a system of passwords. Upon completion of the data processing phase, all respondent-specific and household-specific information, such as address, telephone number, and respondent names (when provided) were purged from the data files before they were delivered to the County.

Availability of Field's Toll-Free Telephone Number

Field maintained a toll-free number throughout the data collection period for respondents who had questions about the survey. In addition, when interviewers encountered an answering machine during their final call attempt to a household, a message was left referencing the

availability of the toll-free number which respondents could call to participate in the survey. For control purposes, telephone numbers eligible for such 800 number callbacks were stored in memory to confirm that the party phoning back was indeed among those phone listings eligible for inclusion into their respective samples.

Sample Management

An important task throughout the telephone interviewing phase was the collection of information relating to the outcome of call attempts made to each sample listing dialed during the survey. Field employed its proprietary Sample Management System (SMS) for this purpose. As interviewers recorded the result code of each interview attempt, Field's SMS system was programmed to group together similar categories of call outcomes and determine the proper next step that should be taken for each listing. The system also produced regular summary reports of call attempt outcomes throughout the interviewing period. These summaries allowed the Project Coordinator and survey supervisors to continuously monitor the progress of interviewing, identify potential problem areas in data collection and provide ongoing feedback to the interviewing staff. After the completion of data collection, the SMS system provides metrics reporting the disposition of final call attempts to each listing dialed.

Number of Call Attempts

For the Adult Survey, up to eight attempts were made to reach, screen and interview an eligible adult at each residential sample listing dialed. Similarly, for Phase Two of the Child Survey, up to eight attempts were made to reach, screen and attempt to interview an eligible parent/caregiver in each child household. Even greater efforts were made when attempting to implement Phase One of the Child Survey in which follow-up interviews were made with the parents/caregivers in child households that had already participated in the Adult Survey. For these households up to twenty-four call attempts were made to reach and complete an interview with the appropriate parent/caregiver.

Initial telephone contact attempts were made during the early evening hours on weekdays and throughout the day on weekends to maximize the chances of including both working and non-working adults. Callbacks were made at different times and on different days to increase the probability of finding qualified adults available for the interview. Where possible, appointments were made at a specified date and time to maximize cooperation rates. Callback appointments were scheduled throughout the interviewing period seven days a week as requested by the respondent.

Refusals and Refusal Conversion Procedures

An increasing problem when conducting public opinion research surveys in the United States relates to the public's growing reluctance to participate. Most refusals in telephone surveys occur at the very onset of the interview attempt. Although some are not preventable, when interviewers encountered a refusal, they were trained to employ one of several possible protocols, depending on the respondent's initial response or apparent reason for not participating. This involves interviewers reading slightly different scripts to refusers who appear initially uninterested, hesitant or simply lack confidence.

Interviewers were also instructed to categorize each refusal into one of two broad categories – "hard refusals" for households in which the spokesperson was adamant about not being called back again, and "soft refusals" for other households, based on the reaction they received to each call attempt. No further action or interview attempts were made to households categorized as a "hard refusal." Refusals categorized as soft were re-opened and called back after a fixed period of time had passed (typically at least one month). Under this approach, the initial follow-up call attempt was made as if the initial refusal had never occurred. These calls were made at different times of day and on different days of the week than when the initial refusal occurred.

For households that continued to refuse, or for those where a respondent began the survey but broke off (but excluding "hard terminates"), a specially trained team of refusal conversion interviewers re-approached the household, using a "call with concern" procedure. These interviewers have received special training in methods to re-contact and encourage the participation of those who had originally declined, and consulted all previous details from the approaches to the households that might be useful in helping to obtain cooperation.

Interviewing Dates

All data collection for the 2007 LACHS was completed April 3, 2007 through January 22, 2008. Interviewing for the Adult Survey and Child Survey (Phase One) began simultaneously at the start of the data collection period on April 3, 2007. Interviewing on the Adult Survey was completed on December 29, 2007, while interviewing on the Child Survey (Phase Two) was completed on January 22, 2008.

Disposition of Interview Attempts – Adult Survey

The following is a summary of the disposition of the final call attempts made to the 2007 LACHS Adult Survey:

Total listings dialed	83,665
Completed Adult Survey interview	<u>7,205</u> *
Completed screening questions/ineligible for survey	<u>630</u> **
Refusals/break-offs	<u>11,057</u>
Initial household refusal prior to screening	7,634
Refused after household screening	2,796
Terminated by respondent/partial	627
Not a residential (landline) phone	<u>36,174</u>
Not working/disconnected/changed number	20,969
Fax/modem/pager	5,616
Cell phone	158
Business/institutional/other non-residence	9,431
Non-contacts	20,295
Answering machine/other non-contact on final attempt	18,162
Respondent unavailable/callback	1,068
Language, communications barrier	990
Blocked number	75
Unknown household eligibility	<u>8,239</u> ^{***}
Repeated no answer/busy signal	8,239
Other	65
Cooperation Rate	40%
Response Rate	18%

^{* 5} cases were pulled in tabulation, resulting in an effective sample size of 7,200.

^{**} includes non-adult households and those living outside the Los Angeles County (for the main sample) and outside the Antelope Valley (for the augmented sample).

^{***} for response rate calculations, 20% of these are estimated to be households

Cooperation and response rates were calculated using the American Association for Public Opinion Research's (AAPOR's) "Outcome Rate Calculator" found at its web site at www.aapor.org.

The cooperation rate reported is AAPOR's Cooperation Rate 3 (COOP3), derived from the following formula:

COOP3 = I/((I+P) + R), where

I = completed interviews

P= partial interviews

R= refusals or break-offs

The response rate reported was calculated using AAPOR's Response Rate 3, derived from the following formula:

RR3= I/(I+P) + (R+NC+O) + e(UH+UO), where

I = completed interviews

P= partial interviews

R= refusals or break-offs

NC= non-contacts

O= other

e= estimate of the proportion of eligible households among all numbers for which a definitive determinations of status was obtained

UH= unknown household

UO = unknown other

Disposition of Call Attempts – Child Survey

The following is a summary of the final disposition of call attempts made to the 2007 LACHS Child Survey:

		I	
	<u>Total</u>	Phase 1	Phase 2
Completed Child Survey interview	5,728	1,363	4,365
Completed screening questions/ineligible for survey	$26,692^{*}$		26,692
Refusals/break-offs Initial household refusal prior to screening Refusal after household screening Terminated by parent/partial	<u>8,775</u> 6,825 1,554 396	<u>646</u> 582 64	8,129 6,825 972 332
Not a residential (landline) phone Not working/disconnected/changed number Fax/modem/pager Cell phone Business/institutional/other non-residence	34,240 21,588 4,688 123 7,841	<u>151</u> 136 4 2 9	34,089 21,452 4,684 121 7,832
Non-contacts Answering machine/other non-contact on final attempt Respondent unavailable/callback Language, communications barrier Blocked numbers	23,297 20,364 1,839 1,057 37	$ \frac{428}{294} 132 2 0 $	22,869 20,070 1,707 1,055 37
Unknown household eligibility Repeated no answer/busy signal	<u>6,928</u> ** 6,928		<u>6,928</u> 6,928
Other	192	76	116
Cooperation Rate Response Rate	40% 15%		

* includes non-adult households and those living outside the Los Angeles County (for the main sample) or outside the Antelope Valley or West LA SPAs (for the augmented sample).

** for response rate calculations, 20% of these are estimated to be households.

The cooperation and response rates reported for the Child Survey reported were calculated in a similar manner and using the same formulae as those for the adult survey.

Discussion of Response Rates

Before discussing the response rates achieved this year, we first wanted to highlight some of the techniques used by Field to maximize survey participation in the 2007 LACHS.

- 1. One significant enhancement made to the 2007 LACHS was the incorporation of an advance mailing to all sampled cases in the Adult Survey with mailable addresses identified by our sampling vendor, Survey Sampling Inc. This involved the mailing of approximately 30,000 booklet letters printed in English, Spanish, Chinese, Korean and Vietnamese over a five-month period spanning April through August 2007. To emphasize the survey's legitimacy and importance, the booklet letter was printed on Los Angeles County Public Health Department stationery and signed by the Director. To maximize its impact, mailings were staggered throughout the data collection period with the goal of reaching households shortly in advance of the first call attempt to the household.
- 2. Consistent with data collection procedures of previous LACHS studies, extra efforts were made to provide additional training to Field's staff of interviewers and interview supervisors at the onset of data collection to encourage the use of methods that would stimulate respondent participation and reduce refusals. Also, interviewers assigned to calling back households that had initially refused were given special training in techniques for re-contacting such households.
- 3. While most interviews were completed within the first few call attempts to households, up to eight attempts were made to reach, screen and interview an eligible respondent within each potential household listing. In addition, for Phase One of the Child Survey even greater efforts were made up to 24 attempts to reach and complete a follow-up interview with the parent/caregiver of a child living in each Adult Survey household in which a child age 0-17 resided.
- 4. An enhanced method was used to select which household adult to interview for the Adult Survey, which enabled us to bypass the enumeration of all adult household members and, at the same time, reduce the use of the sometimes unreliable "most recent birthday" method of respondent selection that had been used in earlier LACHS studies. Because this

respondent selection procedure was less intrusive, but produced a valid probability of selection of adults, in our opinion, its usage had a positive effect on response rates.

5. An increasingly important procedure for representing the growing racial and ethnic diversity of the Los Angeles County adult and child populations was making callbacks to households where a Spanish or Asian language communications barrier was detected or where a specific non-English language was requested by the selected respondent. These callbacks resulted in an increased proportion of non-English interviews for both the Adult Survey and Child Survey in 2007, permitting households not fluent in English and those who had a difficult time understanding or speaking English to participate in their own language.

Nevertheless, the response rates achieved in the 2007 LACHS were not as high as we would have liked and were lower than those achieved in earlier LACHS studies conducted by Field for the County. Declining response rates, however, are not just a problem for the LACHS, but are common to all telephone surveys conducted by the leading survey research organizations in the U.S. in recent years. We generally caution against the simple comparison of the response rates of one survey to another since such comparisons are complicated by the fact that the surveys may differ methodologically in terms of their sampling, types of respondents targeted for interview, interview approach, survey length, among other factors. Yet, as a way to demonstrate the declines other prominent researchers are facing when conducting large-scale health surveys in Los Angeles County, it is useful to examine the response rates of recent California Health Interview Surveys (CHIS). These surveys are in many methodological ways similar to the LACHS, since its Adult Survey involves sampling one adult per household by telephone using an RDD sampling approach and attempting an interview of about 30 minutes on similar topics including health status, health conditions and health risk behaviors. According to CHIS's published methodological reports, the response rates it has been encountering have been declining at a fairly consistent and steady clip over the years. In particular, the response rates of CHIS interviews completed in Los Angeles County have proved to be particularly problematic, and exhibit consistently lower rates of response than those encountered in other California counties. Specifically, CHIS's reported response rates applicable to its adult sample interviews in Los Angeles County declined from 34.1% in 2001 to 28.1% in 2003 to 23.6% in 2005.

Given this observed long-term trend and our recent experience in conducting the 2007 LACHS, it is likely that the response rates for its adult sample interviews in Los Angeles County from the 2007 CHIS (for which published response rates to our knowledge are not yet publicly available) will be near the 20% level.

In addition, it is important to note one important methodological difference between CHIS and the LACHS. This relates to CHIS's use of monetary incentives to respondents for participation in its surveys, which have not been employed in any of the LACHS studies. This, in our opinion, is one reason why the response rates from CHIS's Los Angeles County samples have been generally higher than those of the LACHS at comparable points in time. But, while incentives have been proven to improve response rates to some extent, as the CHIS experience demonstrates, they are not a panacea for reversing the overall long-term decline in response rates.

Declining response rates have unfortunately become the norm rather than the exception when conducting relatively long 30-minute telephone surveys among a random sample of adults using an RDD sampling methodology, especially among a highly urban, heavily immigrant population like that of Los Angeles County. But, the more important issue to consider is whether lower response rates necessarily translate to diminished quality data. A number of recent studies have shown that the accuracy of survey data from RDD studies with lower response rates do not differ in significant ways from those with high response rates. This is because survey nonresponse frequently is caused by factors not correlated with the subject of the survey.

An interesting summary discussion of this can be found at the American Association for Public Opinion Research's web site <www.aapor.org>. The piece, entitled "Response Rates – An Overview," states the following with regard to the relationship between response rates and survey quality:

"... two factors have now undermined the role of the response rate as the primary arbiter of survey quality. Largely due to increasing refusals, response rates across all modes of survey administration have declined, in some cases precipitously. As a result, organizations have had to put additional effort into administration, thus making all types of surveys more costly. At the same time, studies that have compared survey estimates to benchmark data from the U.S. Census or very large governmental sample surveys have also questioned the positive association between response rates and quality.

... consumers of survey results should treat all response rates with skepticism, since these rates do not necessarily differentiate reliably between accurate and inaccurate data. Instead consumers should pay attention to other indicators of quality that are included in reports and on websites, such as insignificant levels of bias, low levels of missing data, and conformity with other research findings."

Two recent academic studies, in fact, have found little relationship between response rates and accuracy of surveys conducted by some of the nation's leading research organizations. These include Allyson L. Holbrook, et. al. "The Causes and Consequences of Response Rates in Surveys by the News Media and Government Contractor Survey Research Firms," presented at the Second International Conference on Telephone Survey Methodology, January 2005; and Scott Keeter, et. al. "Gauging the Impact of Growing Nonresponse on Estimates from a National RDD Telephone Survey," *Public Opinion Quarterly*, 70(5), Special Issue 2006, pp.759-779.

Thus, while we agree that lower response rates are not helpful, we believe that the survey procedures employed by Field when implementing the 2007 LACHS should serve to assure the County that the information derived from both the Adult Survey and the Child Survey are accurate and reliable.

Data Processing

After the completion of data collection, all survey information was processed from Field's data processing center located within its San Francisco headquarters. This allowed for direct supervision and control over all processing functions by the Project Coordinator and Field's MIS and programming staff.

A number of post-survey data checks and review tasks were performed by Field's data processing and coding staff. As a first step, all data from both the Adult Survey and Child Survey were systematically formatted in preparation for data cleaning and processing.

Survey questions that permitted short verbatim replies, when the established pre-coded response categories did not clearly fit respondent replies, were reviewed and coded into their appropriate answer categories by Field's coding staff. This includes questions in the adult and child survey where an "other" response was permitted, such as questions involving type of health insurance coverage, race, Hispanic or Asian ancestry, language spoken in the household, city of residence

and country of birth. At the conclusion of this review, verbatim replies that did not fit into any established code were given the "other" code designation in the data files, and all answers from these "other" lists were provided to the County at the conclusion of processing.

Because CATI and the MR Interviewer systems provide for the direct data entry of responses by the interviewer during the call and do not permit ineligible or invalid data entries, the data files resulting from data collection are virtually error free. However, because interviewers manually fill out error correction sheets when they have incorrectly entered a respondent's answer or when a respondent changes his or her response after it has been entered, the survey data require additional data "cleaning." All data correction sheets were reviewed and interview information corrected, as necessary, by Field's professional coding staff. Following this, an additional series of checks was performed by means of a specially designed cleaning program that scrutinizes each questionnaire for internally inconsistent information.

In addition, the coding staff also reviews the answers given to questions that provide overlapping information in an attempt to reduce item non-response. An example of this relates to the determination of a respondent's or child's racial and ethnic background. In cases when a respondent did not give a direct answer to the Hispanic origin, volunteered answers from that respondent relating to their race and country of birth were also examined. In some cases, answers to the Hispanic origin question originally coded as "refused" were changed to a "yes" response based on the information given to these other questions.

A similar procedure was followed with regard to respondent answers to the Armenian heritage question. Respondent answers to their country of birth were checked against answers given to this question, and answers to the Armenian heritage questions originally coded as "refused" were changed to a "yes" response base on this information.

Finally, answers given to a respondent's or child's specific country of birth were checked against the respondent's initial answer regarding whether they or their child was born outside the U.S. In some cases, respondent answers to this initial answer could have been changed based on the specific information given to the country of birth.

Throughout the entire data review and processing phase, special procedures were enforced to limit access to all project files through a system of internal passwords.

Geo-coding

Questions in both the Adult Survey and the Child Survey asked respondents to specify their city of residence, zip code and residential address. For respondents unwilling to volunteer their specific address, a follow-up question asked for the names of the two cross-streets nearest their residence. After the completion of interviewing, each piece of geographic information provided by the respondent was individually reviewed by Field's coding staff for completeness and internal consistency. The goal was to ensure that the geographic information recorded throughout each respondent record was as accurate and complete as possible. This review process involved several steps.

For example, if the city or, more typically, the respondent's specific residential zip code, was not provided, or if the zip code provided was inconsistent with their city of residence, other geographic information from the survey was examined in an attempt to resolve the inconsistency and provide a consistent coding of the record. When specific address or cross-street information was provided by the respondent, Field's coding staff consulted the 2007 edition of the Los Angeles County Street Guide (also referred to as The Thomas Guide), published by Rand McNally, to help resolve these inconsistencies. In cases where address or cross-street information was not provided, the area code and exchanges of the telephone number was examined.

At the conclusion of this review, the basic geographic information (city, zip code and street address or cross-streets) of each record, along with a respondent identification number, was turned over to County Public Health Department staff for final review. County staff then did their own independent review of each record to serve as a final check that the geographic information was internally consistent and accurate.

Following this review process, County staff then coded each record into its appropriate County Service Planning Area, Health District, and where possible, census tract. These data were then relayed back to Field and merged into the final data files through the respondent identification number. Once these codes had been entered into the data files, all respondent-specific and household-specific information, such as address, telephone number and respondent names (when provided), were then removed from the data files to protect the confidentiality of all information provided on respondents during the survey.

Database Construction and File Preparation

At the conclusion of data processing, two unweighted data files, one applicable to the Adult Survey and the other applicable to the Child Survey, were prepared in standard ASCII format and delivered to the County, accompanied by all documentation necessary to read each file.

Statistical Weighting

For both the adult and child data files, appropriate statistical weights were then developed to account for differences in the probability of selection of households into each sample and to align the survey results to known geographic and demographic characteristics of the County's adult and child populations. This process involved first calculating a household weight and then a population weight for each individual record. In addition, at the conclusion of the statistical weighting process, both the Adult Survey and Child Survey data files were projected to the population of residential housing units and the population of non-institutionalized adults or children in Los Angeles County applicable to each file. A general description of the procedures used to develop these statistical weights follows.

Stage 1: Construction of the household weights

In the initial step, a base weight was calculated that takes into account household size for the Adult Survey and the number of children age 0-17 living in the household for the Child Survey. For the Adult Survey, the number of persons living in the household was enumerated during the survey. Using 2000 census-based data for Los Angeles County, weights were applied so that the total countywide adult sample reflected the estimated proportions of one-person, two-person, three-person, four-person and five-or-more-person families within the County. For the Child Survey a similar procedure was followed. This involved enumerating in the survey the number of children age 0-17 living in the household and then applying weights to align the child sample

to 2000 census-based estimates of the proportion of one-child, two-child, three-child and four or more child households in Los Angeles County.

A second step involved calculating a weight apportioning the samples according to the distribution of households across the county's eight Service Planning Areas (SPAs) and within each SPA the proportion of households where children age 0-17 resided. Control totals developed from the 2005 American Community Survey were used for this purpose. The household weights assigned to the Adult Survey and the Child Survey by SPA at this stage also served to align each survey's augmented samples (i.e., the Antelope Valley and West LA sample augments) to their proper proportions of the county's total adult and child household populations.

A two-dimensional raking procedure was then performed. The resulting weights were then used to develop additional weighting parameters relating to the proportion of one-telephone and multitelephone households reached in each survey. During both the Adult Survey and Child Survey, respondents were asked how many different telephone lines for non-business use entered their household that were not dedicated data lines. Since households with two or more such lines would have a greater probability of selection in an RDD sample, these households were downweighted.

The weighted data from the initial raking was also used to develop a statistical adjustment to account for the fact that the RDD samples systematically exclude households that either have no telephones whatsoever (non-telephone households) or rely only on cell phones to place residential calls (cell phone only households).

This was done by enumerating survey households into one of three categories: (a) households with continuous landline telephone service over the past three years; (b) households who reported an interruption in their landline telephone service of one month or longer, but had access to a cell phone to place residential calls (recent cell phone-only households); and, (c) households who had a landline service interruption of one month or longer but had access to no telephones whatsoever (recent non-telephone households).

A statistical adjustment was then made to account for the absence of non-telephone households and cell phone only households from each sample. In this approach, respondents who did not have continuous landline telephone service and who either had no cell phone service or had only cell phone service during the time of their service interruption were weighted up to compensate for the absence of non-telephone households and cell phone only households from the survey's sample frame. In effect, respondents identified by the survey as being either recent nontelephone households or recent cell phone only households were used as surrogates for the population of households which were non-telephone households or cell phone only households at the time the LACHS was conducted. The non-telephone household adjustment follows work first developed by Keeter¹, while the adjustments for cell phone only households represents an extension of Keeter's method and is based on work first developed by Jay and DiCamillo². The control totals used in this process were derived from 2000 census-based estimates of the proportion of non-telephone households in Los Angeles County and from 2007 Center for Disease Control's National Health Interview Survey estimates of the proportion of households in that survey's Western region that were cell phone-only households.

The original two-dimensional raking procedure was then re-run adding these two new dimensions. The resulting set of individual household-level weights developed after this round of raking was identified as the "household weight" in both the Adult Survey and Child Survey data files.

Stage 2: Construction of the population weights

Stage 2 weighting then adjusted the Adult Survey and Child Survey to population-based estimates of the actual adult and child populations in Los Angeles County.

Using the household-weighted data, a third raking procedure was performed. The data source used for the control totals for this post-stratification and raking procedure were all derived from the 2006 Population Estimate and Projection System (PEPS) for Los Angeles County. For the Adult Survey, control totals were established for the distribution of adults by Health District (26 levels), gender (2 levels), age (5 levels) and SPA (8 levels), and for race/ethnicity (4 levels). For the Child Survey, control totals were created to represent the distribution of children age 0-17 by Health District (26 levels), race/ethnicity (4 levels) SPA (8 levels), gender (2 levels) and age (5

¹ Keeter, S. (1995), Estimating telephone noncoverage bias from a phone survey. Public Opinion Quarterly, 59, 196-217.

² Jay, E. D. and DiCamillo, M. Identifying recent cell phone-only households in RDD surveys. Paper presented at the 2nd International Conference on Telephone Survey Methodology. Miami, 2006.

levels). The target proportions for these dimensions served as the input data for this procedure and were run on the respondent-level data after the base household weight had been applied. The resultant set of individual respondent-level weights was then identified as the "population weights" in the Adult Survey and Child Survey data files.

Stage 3: Population projections

At the conclusion of the weighting process, the Adult Survey data file was projected to household and population estimates of the total number of residential housing units and total number of non-institutionalized adults residing in Los Angeles County. Similarly, the Child Survey data file was projected to household and population estimates of the total number of residences with children age 0-17 and the total number of children age 0-17 residing in the County.

The total residential housing units for Los Angeles County were based on 2007 California Department of Finance estimates. The population estimates for the Adult Survey were based on the 2006 PEPS for Los Angeles County. Estimates of the number of households with children age 0-17 in Los Angeles County were based on the 2006 Current Population Survey, while estimates of the total population of children age 0-17 in Los Angeles County came from PEPS 2006.

These population projections add to the utility of the survey results in data analysis, since once the data are projected, each survey estimate can be reported as projections to the actual number of adults and children possessing each survey characteristic.

Delivery of Final Data Files

Upon completion of the weighting process, the final survey weights applicable to each respondent record from both the Adult Survey and Child Survey, along with the final data files, were transmitted to the County. The resulting weighted data runs constitute the best estimates of survey response to each question in the Adult Survey and the Child Survey.

-APPENDICES-

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY – Adult Screener –

SCREENING QUESTIONS

Hello. I'm ______ and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. The Department of Public Health is conducting an important survey of County residents.

- We are calling to collect information about the health of County residents to help the Department better serve you.
- Your telephone number was randomly generated by computer.
- We are definitely <u>not</u> selling anything or asking for money.
- The survey is absolutely confidential and the answers given will not be identified with your household in any way.
- If you have any questions about the survey, you may contact the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health at (213) 240-7785.

IF NO ENGLISH SPOKEN, CODE AS FOLLOWS:

SPANISH	2
MANDARIN	3
CANTONESE	4
CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)	
KOREAN.	6
VIETNAMESE	7
ASIAN UNSPECIFIED	8
OTHER	
YES	
REFUSED	r Ask QSZ

QS1. For this survey, it is important that we only interview people who currently live in Los Angeles County. Is your household located in Los Angeles County?

QS2.	In what city or town do you live?	CITY CODE
		DON'T KNOW
		REFUSED

IF CITY ON LIST, CONTINUE

IF NO. DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED. ASK:

- IF "OTHER," DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED CITY, TERMINATE AND SAY:
- I'm sorry but you are not eligible for this survey. We are only interviewing people who currently live in Los Angeles County. Thank you for your time.
- QS3. So that all types of people will be represented in our survey, I need to know how many adults live here. How many persons age 18 or older currently live in this household, including yourself?

# OF ADULTS:	1
DON'T KNOW.	
REFUSED	9

IF QS3 = 1, ASK:

QS4.	Is that you?	
	YES, SPEAKING WITH ADULT	
	NOT SPEAKING WITH ADULT	$2 \rightarrow \text{ASK TO SPEAK TO ADULT}$

IF QS3 = 2 AND CATI RANDOMLY SELECTS RESPONDENT, ASK:

QS5.	We would like to continue the interview with	ר you.
	CONTINUE	1 → CONTINUE
	ARRANGE CALLBACK	
	REFUSED	9 → TERMINATE

IF QS3 = 2 AND CATI RANDOMLY SELECTS OTHER ADULT, ASK:

QS6.	We would like to speak to the other adult that person?	who lives in your household. May I please speak with
	YES, AND COMES TO PHONE	1 \rightarrow CONTINUE
	NO, NOT AVAILABLE NOW	$2 \rightarrow$ ARRANGE CALLBACK
	NO, REFUSED	9 → TERMINATE

IF QS3 = 3 OR MORE AND CATI RANDOMLY SELECTS RESPONDENT, ASK:

QS7.	We would like to continue the interview	v with you.
	CONTINUE	1 → CONTINUE
	NOT AVAILABLE NOW	2 \rightarrow ARRANGE CALLBACK
	REFUSED	9 \rightarrow TERMINATE

IF QS3 = 3 OR MORE AND CATI DOES NOT SELECT RESPONDENT, SAY:

QS8.	In order to randomly select one of the besides yourself who has had the mo	other adults for the survey, please think of the adult st recent birthday. May I please speak with that person?
	YES, AND COMES TO PHONE NO, NOT AVAILABLE NOW NO, REFUSED	2 \rightarrow ARRANGE CALLBACK

REPEAT INTRO, IF NECESSARY. ONCE SELECTED RESPONDENT IS READY TO BEGIN, ASK:

QS9.	We can conduct the survey in any of the following languages –	NO, CONTINUE IN
	English, Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, Korean and	ENGLISH $1 \rightarrow \text{GO TO } Q1$
	Vietnamese. Would you prefer to be interviewed in a language	OTHER LANGUAGE $2 \rightarrow \text{ASK QS10}$
	other than English?	DON'T KNOW
	ů	REFUSED

IF YES, ASK:

QS10.	RECORD LANGUAGE OR ASK: Which one? (IF DIFFERENT BILINGUAL INTERVIEWER IS REQUIRED, RECORD APPLICABLE CODE)
	$ \begin{array}{c} \text{SPANISH} & & & & & & & \\ \text{MANDARIN} & & & & & & & \\ \text{MANDARIN} & & & & & & & \\ \text{CANTONESE} & & & & & & & \\ \text{CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)} & & & & & & \\ \text{KOREAN} & & & & & & & & \\ \text{KOREAN} & & & & & & & \\ \text{VIETNAMESE} & & & & & & \\ \text{VIETNAMESE} & & & & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & & & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & \\ \text{OTHER} & & & & \\ O$
	QS11. An interviewer (fluent in) will call you back soon to conduct the interview in that language. We greatly appreciate your participation in this important survey when our interviewer calls back.
1	

IF QS10 = 11 OR DON'T KNOW <u>OR</u> QS9 = DON'T KNOW, SAY:

QS12.	We can only conduct the interview in English, Spanish, Mandarin or Cantonese, Korean and Vietnamese. Is there another adult in your household who speaks English or one of these languages?
	YES 1 $ ightarrow$ ASK TO SPEAK WITH THAT
	PERSON AND RETURN TO INTRO
	NO2 \rightarrow TERMINATE

Before we begin, I need to tell you that this call may be monitored by my supervisor to ensure quality and courtesy. If you prefer not to answer any question, please tell me and I will simply go on to the next question.

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY – Adult Questionnaire –

OVERALL HEALTH STATUS

Q2.

First, a few questions about your health and general well-being. . .

Q1. Would you say that in general your health is excellent, very good, good, fair or poor?

EXCELLENT	1
VERY GOOD	2
GOOD	
FAIR	4
POOR	5
DON'T KNOW	
REFUSED	9
DAYS	
DON'T KNOW	98
REFUSED	

__DAYS

Was your <u>physical</u> health not good?
 Q3. Thinking about your <u>mental</u> health, which includes stress, depression and problems with emotions, for how many days

during the past 30 days was your mental health not good?

Thinking about your <u>physical</u> health, which includes physical illness and injury, for how many days during the past 30 days

- Q4. During the past 30 days, for about how many days did poor physical or mental health keep you from doing your usual activities, such as self-care, work or recreation?
- Q5. GENDER: (INTERVIEWER: I F YOU HAVE ANY DOUBT AS TO RESPONDENT'S GENDER, SAY: Because it is sometimes difficult to determine over the phone, I am asked to confirm whether you are male or female.)
- Q6a. What is your age?

_____YEARS OLD _____99

IF REFUSED, ASK:

W/o or	o only acking this to make auro that we have	10 04
		18–24
taiked	to enough people in each age group. Can you	25–29
just tei	I me if you are (READ CATEGORIES)?	30–39
		40-44
		45–49
		50–59
		60–64 ¹
		65 or older
	DO NOT READ \rightarrow	REFUSED
IF REFL	JSED, ASK:	
Q6c.	Well, can you tell me whether you are under	YES, UNDER AGE 65
		NO, AGE 65 OR OLDER
	- 5	REFUSED
	talked just tel	IF REFUSED, ASK:

Q7. How tall are you?

	FEET	
	INCHES	
DON'T KNOW		98
REFUSED		99

198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

How much do you weigh? Q8.

How much do you weigh?				LBS. DON'T KNOW
IF Q8 =	DON'T KN	IOW OR R	EFUSED AND Q7 WAS ANSWERED, ASK:	
Q9a.	Do you OBESITY		ss than (INSERT CRITICAL WEIGHT FOR	YES, WEIGH LESS
	IF YES, A	ASK:		
	Q9b.		weigh less than (INSERT CRITICAL FOR <u>OVERWEIGHT</u>)?	YES, WEIGH LESS
		IF YES, A	ASK:	
		Q9c.	Do you weigh less than (INSERT CRITICAL WEIGHT FOR <u>UNDERWEIGHT</u>)?	YES, WEIGH LESS

IF Q7 = DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED AND Q8 WAS ANSWERED, ASK:

Q10a.	Is your OBESITY	•	ss than (INSERT CRITICAL HEIGHT FOR	YES, LESS NO, NOT LESS DON'T KNOW/NOT SURE REFUSED	2 8
	IF NO, A	SK:			
	Q10b.		height less than (INSERT CRITICAL FOR <u>OVERWEIGHT</u>)?	YES, LESS NO, NOT LESS DON'T KNOW/NOT SURE REFUSED	2 8
		IF NO, A	SK:		
		Q10c.	Is your height less than (INSERT CRITICAL HEIGHT FOR <u>UNDERWEIGHT</u>)?	YES, LESS NO, NOT LESS DON'T KNOW/NOT SURE REFUSED	2

- Q12. How many total servings of fruits and vegetables did you eat vesterday? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) A serving would equal one medium apple, a handful of broccoli, or a cup of cut carrots. (INTERVIEWER: 6 OZ. OF 100% FRUIT JUICE COUNTS AS A SERVING.)
- Q15. How would you rate the quality of the fresh fruits and vegetables where you shop – very high quality, somewhat high quality, not of high quality or would you say that fresh fruits and vegetables are not available?

DON'T KNOW	98
REFUSED	99

SERVINGS

VERY HIGH	1
SOMEWHAT HIGH	2
NOT HIGH QUALITY	3
NOT AVAILABLE	4
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

Q16. How often do you eat any food, including meals and snacks, from a fast-food restaurant, like McDonald's, Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken or another similar type of place – 4 or more times per week, 1-3 times per week, less than once a week but more than once a month less than once a month or never?

4+ TIMES PER WEEK	1
1-3 TIMES PER WEEK	2
LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK/MORE THAN	
ONCE A MONTH	3
LESS THAN ONCE A MONTH	4
NEVER	5
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

NUTRITION SUBSAMPLE 2 QUESTIONS HERE

HEALTH DEPARTMENT SUBSAMPLE 1 QUESTIONS HERE

HEALTH CONDITIONS

The next few questions are about any health conditions you may have. . .

Q17.	Have you ever been told by a doctor or other health professional that you have (READ ITEMS)?					
			YES	<u>NO</u>	<u>DK</u>	REF
	a.	a heart problem, such as coronary heart disease, angina (AN-JIE-NA), or had a heart attack	1	. 2 .	8.	9
	b.	diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES) or sugar diabetes (IF FEMALE, ADD: other than during				
		pregnancy)	1	. 2 .	8.	9
	C.	high blood pressure or hypertension (IF FEMALE, ADD: other than during pregnancy)	1	. 2 .	8.	9
	d.	high cholesterol (CO-LES-TER-ALL)	1	. 2 .	8.	9
	e.	depression or some other depressive disorder (IF NECESSARY: such as bipolar disorder or manic depression)	1	2 .	8.	9

IF YES TO DIABETES, IMMEDIATELY ASK:

	,		
Q18.	How old were you when you were told you have	YEARS	
	diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES)?	DON'T KNOW	98
		REFUSED	
Q19.	Are you now taking insulin?	YES	1
		NO	2
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
Q20.	Are you now taking diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES) pills?	YES	1
	, 5 ()1	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	9
Q21.	A test for "A one C" measures the average level of	TIMES	
	blood sugar over the past three months. About how	NEVER HEARD OF TEST	
	many times in the past 12 months has a doctor, nurse	DON'T KNOW	
	or other health professional checked you for "A one C"?	REFUSED	
IF YES	TO DEPRESSIVE DISORDER, IMMEDIATELY ASK:		
Q22.	Are you currently taking medication prescribed by a	YES	1
	doctor or psychiatrist for this disorder?	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	

IF Q19, Q20 AND Q22 \neq YES, ASK:

and/or inhalers prescribed for you by a doctor? NODON'T KNO	
-------------------------------------------------------------	--

IF Q23 = YES OR Q19, Q20 OR Q22 = YES, ASK: Q24. How many different prescribed medicines, injections and/or inhalations do you take on a daily basis? Please include all types of medications prescribed for you by a doctor. IF ONE OR MORE, ASK: Q25. Do you have at least an extra three week supply of all YES1 the prescription drugs you take on a daily basis? NO......2 DON'T KNOW......8 REFUSED9 Q26. Are you currently receiving counseling from a mental health YES1 NO......2

professional, such as a psychiatrist, psychologist, psychotherapist, social worker, or counselor for any reason?

MENTAL HEALTH QUESTIONS

Q27. The next questions are about how you have been feeling during the <u>past 30 days</u>. About how often during the past 30 days (READ ITEM) – all the time, most of the time, some of the time, a little of the time, or none of the time? (READ ITEMS IN ORDER)

		ALL OF	MOST OF	SOME OF	A LITTLE OF	NONE OF		
		THE TIME	THE TIME	THE TIME	THE TIME	THE TIME	DK	REF
а.	did you feel nervous	1	2	3	4	5	8	9
	did you feel hopeless							
C.	did you feel restless or fidgety	1	2	3	4	5	8	9
d.	did you feel so depressed that nothing could chee	er						
	you up	1	2	3	4	5	8	9
e.	did you feel that everything was an effort	1	2	3	4	5	8	9
	did you feel worthless							

PETS/SLEEP SUBSAMPLE 3 QUESTIONS HERE

Q29. In the past five years, have you received treatment or counseling for substance abuse or addiction, excluding tobacco? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) This could include alcohol, prescription medications, marijuana, cocaine or some other controlled substance.

IF YES, ASK:

For what substance or substances have you been	ALCOHOL	1
treated? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	PRESCRIPTION MEDICINE	2
	MARIJUANA	3
	COCAINE/CRACK	4
	METHAMPHETAMINE	5
	HEROIN	6
	OTHER	7
	DON'T KNOW	
	REFUSED	

The next questions ask about any long-term health impairments or disabilities you may have that have lasted or can be expected to last for at least 3 months.

Q31.	Are you limited in any way in any activities because of a	YES	
	physical, mental or emotional problem?	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	9
Q32.	Do you now have any health problem that requires you to use	YES	1
	special equipment, such as a cane, wheelchair, a special bed	NO	2
	or special telephone?	DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
	IF Q31 ≠ YES AND Q32 ≠ YES, ASK:		
	Q33. Do you consider yourself a person with a disability?	YES	1
		NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
	IF Q31, Q32 OR Q33 = YES, ASK:	REFUSED	

Q34.	Are you dependent on anyone for assistance with two or more of the following activities: transportation,	YES1 NO2
	eating, toileting, bathing, dressing or taking medication?	DON'T KNOW

People may provide regular care or help to another adult who is aging or has a long-term illness or disability. This person you are providing care to may be someone who lives with you or lives somewhere else.

Q35.	During the past month, did you provide any such care or	YES	1
	assistance to an adult who is aging or has a long-term illness	NO	2
	or disability?	DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9

IF YES, ASK:

IF YES,	ASK:		
Q36.	How many adults did you provide this care for?	1	1
		3 OR MORE	3
		DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9
Q37.	(IF ONE, ASK: What age is this person)? (IF 2 OR MORE,	YEARS OLD	
	ASK: What is the age of the person that you are giving	DON'T KNOW	998
	the most care to?)	REFUSED	999

Q38.	What relationship does this person have to you? (IF NECESSARY) Are they your (READ LIST)?	husband/wife/spouse/partner1father/father-in-law2mother/mother-in-law3brother/brother-in-law4sister/sister-in-law5grandfather6grandmother7son/son-in-law8daughter/daughter-in-law9granddaughter10granddaughter11aunt12uncle13nephew14niece15other relative16friend/neighbor17paid caregiver18other non-relative98REFUSED99
Q39.	Does that person live with you?	YES
Q40.	On average, about how many hours do you spend helping this person in a typical week?	HOURS DON'T KNOW
Q41.	Does this person have a problem with memory loss or have a disorder like Alzheimer's (ALLS-HI-MERS) disease?	YES
Q42.	Is this person dependent on you for providing assistance with two or more of the following activities: transportation, eating, toileting, bathing, dressing or taking medication?	YES

EMPLOYMENT AND DAILY ACTIVITIES

Q43.	and da you sel are you you loo house, work be	ve are asking about your current employment situation ily activities. Please tell me all that apply to you are f-employed or working for a family owned business, a employed for pay by some other organization, are king for work, are you a homemaker or keeping are you retired from the labor force, are you unable to ecause of a disability, are you not looking for work, or a student? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	SELF-EMPLOYED/FAMILY BUSINESS.1EMPLOYED BY ORGANIZATION2LOOKING FOR WORK3HOMEMAKER/KEEPING HOUSE4RETIRED5DISABILITY6NOT LOOKING FOR WORK7STUDENT8DON'T KNOW98REFUSED99
	IF EMPL	OYED (Q43 = 1 OR 2), ASK:	
	Q44.	How many hours do you work in a typical week (at all of your paying jobs)? (READ CATEGORIES IF NECESSARY) DO NOT READ {	less than 20 hours 1 20-34 hours 2 35 or more hours 3 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9

L		PANDEMIC FLU SUBSAMPLE 6 QUESTIO	
Q45.		nany minutes does it usually take to get from to work?	MINUTES NONE/WORK AT HOME
	IF NOT	"0" OR "WORK AT HOME", ASK:	
	Q46.	How many miles is it from home to work? (IF NECESSARY:) Just your best estimate.	MILES LESS THAN 1 MILE
		IF VARIES, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
		Q47. What is the zip code where you work (IF NECESSARY:) most often? (ANSWER MUST BEGIN WITH A 9)	ENTER 5-DIGIT ZIP: 9999 DON'T KNOW
	Q48.	How do you usually get from home to work (READ CATEGORIES IF NECESSARY) – drive alone, car pool or share a ride with another by bus, Metro train, walk, motorcycle, bicyc or some other way?	CAR POOL/ SHARE RIDE BUS

BUILT ENVIRONMENT SUBSAMPLE QUESTIONS HERE

The next few questions are about <u>vigorous</u> exercises or activities, those that require hard physical effort and cause heavy sweating, and large increases in breathing and heart rate (for example, running or aerobics).

Q49. In a usual week, do you do <u>vigorous exercise or activities</u> for at least 10 minutes at a time without stopping? This can include vigorous activity you do while at work.

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF YES, ASK:

Π Π \Box \Box O ,			
Q50.	How many days per week do you do such vigorous exercise or activities for at least 10 minutes without stopping?	DAYS (1-7) DON'T KNOW REFUSED	•
Q51.	On an average day when you do these vigorous activities for at least 10 minutes at a time, how much <u>total</u> time do you spend doing these activities? (RECORD ANSWER IN MINUTES)	MINUTES DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
	(INTERVIEWER: TOTAL TIME WHEN BREATHING AND HEART TIMES WHEN RESPONDENT DID THESE ACTIVITIES FOR 10		IP THE

Next, we are asking about <u>moderate</u> exercises or activities, those that cause light sweating, and slight increases in breathing and heart rate (for example, walking, yard work or physical labor at work).

	IF YES,		DA(0 (1 7))	
	Q53.	How many days per week do you walk or do moderate exercise or physical activities for at least 10 minutes without stopping?	DAYS (1-7) DON'T KNOW REFUSED	_
	Q54.	On an average day when you walk or do moderate exercise or physical activities for at least 10 minutes without stopping, how much <u>total</u> time do you spend doing these activities? (RECORD ANSWER IN MINUTES)	MINUTES DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
		(INTERVIEWER: TOTAL TIME WHEN BREATHING AND HEART TIMES WHEN RESPONDENT DID THESE ACTIVITIES FOR 10 M		UP THE
Q57.		afe from crime do you consider your neighborhood to be safe, somewhat safe, somewhat unsafe, or not at all	VERY SAFE SOMEWHAT SAFE SOMEWHAT UNSAFE NOT AT ALL SAFE DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
		CHILD POLICY SUBSAMPLE 7 QUESTION	S HERE	

OTHER HEALTH RISKS

Q60. There are many actions you can take to prepare for a disaster, such as an earthquake, fire or terrorist attack. Do you or does your household have... (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)?

	<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
() a. a 3-day supply of water for everyone who lives there; a 3-day supply is a gallon of water per person per day	
() b. a 3-day supply of non-perishable food for everyone who lives there; by a perishable we mean food that does not require refrigeration or cooking	
telephone Information line, where you can access Health and NO	
. , ,	9

HEALTH INSURANCE

Q61.

Q62. Are <u>you yourself</u> covered by health insurance or any other kind of health care plan? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) This includes health insurance obtained through an employer, purchased directly, HMOs or pre-paid plans like Kaiser, government programs such as Medicare, Medi-Cal, Medicaid, Healthy Families, military programs such as Champus, Champ VA, or the Indian Health Service.

YES, COVERED	1
NO, NOT COVERED	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF YES, DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK:

	e <u>you yourself</u> currently covered for health insural SWER FOR EACH)?	NCE (READ ITEMS ONE AT A TIME AND RECORD
	,	<u>YES</u> <u>NO</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
IF	AGE 65 OR OLDER OR DISABLED (Q31, Q32 OR Q33	= YES), ASK:
a.	under <u>Medicare</u> (IF NECESSARY, SAY: Medicare insurance program for seniors and certain pers	
b.	through your own or some other family membe association, school or business	
C.	under your own or some other family member's (like Champus or VA coverage)	s <u>military insurance program</u>
d.	under <u>Medi-Cal</u> or <u>Medicaid</u> (IF NECESSARY, SA) insurance program for certain low-income child pregnant women, and certain persons who are	Iren and their families,
IF	NOT YES TO a-d, ASK:	
e.	through a <u>separate policy</u> that you or some othe directly from an insurance provider	
IF	a-e = NO, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
f.	What is the type or name of your insurance?	(SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW8 REFUSED9

IF NO, NOT COVERED, ASK:

64.		ere are some types of coverage you may not have considered. Are <u>you yourself</u> currently /ered for health insurance… (READ ITEMS ONE AT A TIME AND RECORD ANSWER FOR EACH)?
		<u>YES</u> <u>NO</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
	IF A	AGE 65 OR OLDER OR DISABLED (Q31, Q32 OR Q33 = YES), ASK:
	a.	under <u>Medicare</u> (IF NECESSARY:) Medicare is the government's health insurance program for seniors and certain persons with disabilities
	b.	through your own or some other family member's <u>employer, union, trade</u> association, school or business
	C.	under your own or some other family member's <u>military insurance program</u> (like Champus or VA coverage)
	d.	under <u>Medi-Cal</u> or <u>Medicaid</u> (the government's health insurance program for certain low-income children and their families, pregnant women, and certain persons who are disabled or who are seniors)
	IF N	IOT YES TO a-d, ASK:
	e.	through a <u>separate policy</u> that you or some other family member bought <u>directly from an insurance provider</u>

(IF ANY Q63a-e = 1 OR Q63f NOT DK OR REF) OR (IF ANY Q64a-e = 1), ASK:

Q	65.	During the past 12 months, have you had any periods when	YES	1
		you had no health insurance and you were not covered	NO	~
		under anyone else's plan or government health insurance	DON'T KNOW	8
		program, like Medicare or Medi-Cal?	REFUSED	9

BARRIERS TO ACCESSING HEALTH CARE

Q66.	Overall, how easy or difficult is it for you to get medical care when you need it? Would you say it is very difficult, somewhat difficult, somewhat easy, or very easy?	VERY DIFFICULT
Q67.	When you are sick or want advice about your health, is there one particular place or health provider to whom you go most often?	YES
	IF NO, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
	Q68. Is that because you have more than one place to go, or is it because you have no regular place to go?	MORE THAN ONE PLACE
	IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSE	ED, ASK:
	Q69. Is there a particular place that you go more often than any other place (IF NECESSARY: for your routine care)?	YES
Q70.	During the past year, was there ever a time when transportation problems kept you from getting needed medical care?	YES
IF NON-E	NGLISH LANGUAGE INTERVIEW, ASK:	
Q71.	During the past year, was there ever a time when you had trouble talking to a doctor or health care provider because he or she did not speak your language?	YES
Q72.	In the past year, was there ever a time when you needed (ITEM) could not afford it? (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER) () a. prescription medicine	
	 () a. prescription medicine	
	() c. to see a doctor for a health problem	
	() d. dental care (including check-ups)	
Q73.	About how long has it been since you last visited a doctor for a routine check-up? A routine check-up is a general physical exam, not an exam for a specific injury, illness or condition. (READ CATEGORIES)	less than 12 months11 year but less than 2 years22 years but less than 5 years35 or more years4never5
	DO NOT READ	DON'T KNOW8 REFUSED9
Q74.	How long has it been since you last visited a dentist or dental clinic for any reason – less than twelve months, 1 year but less than 2 years ago, 2 years but less than 5 years ago, 5 or more years ago, or never? Please include visits to orthodontists (ORTH-O-DON-TISTS), dental hygienists (HI-GEN-ISTS), or other dental specialists.	LESS THAN 12 MONTHS

Q75.	Do you have any kind of dental insurance coverage that pays for some or all of your routine dental care? (IF NECESSARY, SAY: This would include dental insurance, pre-paid plans such as HMOs or government plans such as Medi-Cal or Medicaid.)	YES
IF FEMA	LE, ASK:	
Q76x.	Have you had a hysterectomy (HIS-TER-RECK-TA-ME)? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) That is the surgical removal of the uterus (YOU-TER-US).	YES
IF N	IO, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
Q7	6y. How long has it been since you had your last Pap smear? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) This is a scraping from the cervix (SIR-VIX) administered to you by a doctor, nurse or other health professional. Was it (READ CATEGORIES)?	less than 12 months ago,
	DO NOT READ {	REFUSED9
	IF UNDER AGE 50, ASK:	
	Q77. In the past year, were you planning or trying to get pregnant?	YES
	Q77x. Are you currently pregnant?	YES
IF A	GE 40 OR OLDER, ASK:	
Q7		less than 12 months ago,11 year but less than 2 years ago,22 years but less than 3 years ago,33 years but less than 5 years ago,45 or more years ago,5- or - never.6DON'T KNOW.8REFUSED.9

IF AGE 50 OR OLDER, ASK:

Q79.	(IF NEC	the past 12 months, have you had a flu shot? ESSARY: We want to know if you had a flu shot injected arm. Do not include a flu vaccine sprayed in the nose.)	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2
	IF NO, [DK, OR REFUSED, ASK		
	Q80.	During the past 12 months, did you <u>try</u> to get a flu shot?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8

IF AGE 65+, ASK:

Q81.	Have you ever had a pneumonia (NEW-MO-NE-AH) shot? This	YES1
	shot is usually given only once or twice in a person's lifetime	NO2
	and is different from the flu shot. (IF NECESSARY: It is also called	DON'T KNOW8
	the pneumococcal (NEW-MO-CAH-CUL) vaccine.)	REFUSED9

PANDEMIC FLU SUBSAMPLE 6 PF1 - PF13 QUESTIONS HERE

Human papilloma (PAP-ILL-OH-MAH) virus (VY-RUS), also called HPV, is a common sexually transmitted infection known to cause cervical cancer in women. A vaccine to prevent HPV infection is available and is called the cervical cancer vaccine, HPV shot or Gardasil (GARD-AH-SIL).

Q82. Before today, had you ever heard of a vaccine to prevent HPV YES NO......

/	YES	1
	NO	2
	DON'T KNOW	8
	REFUSED	

IF YES, ASK:

IF FEMA	ALE AGE 1	8-26, ASK:	
Q84.	Have y	ou received any HPV shots?	YES
IF FEMA		Q84 = NOT YES, ASK:	
Q85.	vaccina likely o (IF AGE to you, vaccina	18-26, ASK:) How likely is it that you will get ated – very likely, somewhat likely, not too r not at all likely? 27-64, ASK:) If the vaccine were available how likely is it that you would get ated – very likely, somewhat likely, not too r not at all likely?	VERY LIKELY
	ıF Q85	= NOT TOO OR NOT AT ALL LIKELY, OR DON'T K	NOW, ASK:
	Q86.	(IF AGE 18-26, ASK:) Why have you not been or would not be likely to get vaccinated against HPV? (IF AGE 27-64, ASK:) Why would you not be likely to get vaccinated against HPV?	DON'T NEED THE VACCINE NOT RECOMMENDED BY MD CONCERNED ABOUT SIDE EFFECTS TOO EXPENSIVE NOT COVERED BY INSURANCE RELIGIOUS CONCERNS
		(ASK ALL:) Do you think you don't need the vaccine, a doctor or health care provider has not recommended that you get the vaccine, you are concerned about possible side effects, the vaccine is too expensive, your insurance does not cover it, you have concerns related to your religious beliefs, or some other reason? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	OTHER REASON DON'T KNOW

TOBACCO QUESTIONS

On another topic...

7.	Have y	ou smoked at least 100 cigarettes in your entire life?	YES	1
	,	č ,	NO	2
			DON'T KNOW	8
			REFUSED	
3.	Do you	now smoke cigarettes every day, some days, or not at	EVERY DAY	1
	all?		SOME DAYS	2
			NOT AT ALL	3
			DON'T KNOW	8
			REFUSED	9
9.		I currently smoke cigars, a pipe, a hookah or water	NO	1
<i>.</i>		r chew smokeless tobacco? (ANSWER CAN BE A	YES, CIGARS	
	MULTIP	LE YES)	YES, PIPE	
			YES, HOOKAH/WATER PIPE	
			YES, CHEW SMOKELESS TOBACCO	
			DON'T KNOW	8
			REFUSED	9
	IF Q88	= EVERY DAY, ASK:		
	Q90.	On the average, about how many cigarettes do you	CIGARETTES/DAY	
		now smoke each day? (ONE PACK USUALLY EQUALS 20	DON'T KNOW	98
		CIGARETTES. IF CONVERTING PACKS TO CIGARETTES,	REFUSED	
		ALWAYS VERIFY CALCULATION WITH RESPONDENT)		
	0.01			
	Q91.	What is the total number of years you have smoked	YEARS	
		every day? Do not include any time you stayed off	DON'T KNOW	
		cigarettes for 6 months or longer.	REFUSED	99
	IF Q88	= SOME DAYS, ASK:		
	Q92.	On how many of the past 30 days did you smoke a	DAYS	
	G02.	cigarette?		98
		olgarette :	REFUSED	
				33
	Q93.	During the past 30 days, on the days that you		
		smoked, about how many cigarettes did you smoke	DON'T KNOW	98
		per day? (1 PACK = 20 CIGARETTES)	REFUSED	99
				4
	004	Have you ever smoked cigarettes even day for at	VEC	
	Q94.	Have you ever smoked cigarettes every day for at	YES	
	Q94.	Have you ever smoked cigarettes every day for at least 6 months?	NO	2
	Q94.		NO DON'T KNOW	2
	Q94.		NO	2
	Q94. Q95.	least 6 months?	NO DON'T KNOW	2
		least 6 months? About how long has it been since you last smoked	NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED DAYS	2
		least 6 months?	NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED DAYS DAYS WEEKS	2
		least 6 months? About how long has it been since you last smoked	NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED DAYS WEEKS MONTHS	2
		least 6 months? About how long has it been since you last smoked	NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED DAYS DAYS WEEKS MONTHS YEARS	2 8 9
		least 6 months? About how long has it been since you last smoked	NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED DAYS WEEKS MONTHS	2 9

IF Q88 = EVERY DAY OR SOME DAYS, ASK:

Q96.	During the past 7 days, on how many days did you	DAYS	
	smoke in your home?	DON'T KNOW	
	-	REFUSED	

Q97.	How old were you when you first started to smoke cigarettes fairly regularly?	98 DON'T KNOW
Q98.	Around this time 12 months ago, were you smoking cigarettes every day, some days, or not at all?	EVERY DAY1SOME DAYS2NOT AT ALL3DON'T KNOW8REFUSED9
Q99a.	Do you now smoke a lighter cigarette?	YES
	IF YES, ASK:	
	Q99b. Have you always smoked lighter cigarettes or did you switch from a stronger to a lighter cigarette?	ALWAYS SMOKED LIGHTER CIGARETTES1 SWITCHED TO LIGHTER CIGARETTE2 DON'T KNOW
	IF SWITCHED, ASK:	
	Q99c. Did you switch from a stronger to a lighter cigarette because you thought it is less harmful?	YES
Q100.	Are you seriously thinking of quitting smoking cigarettes?	YES
	IF YES, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
	Q101. How soon are you seriously planning to quit smoking cigarettes – within the next 30 days, more than 30 days but within the next 6 months, more than 6 months but within the next 12 months, or no specific time?	WITHIN NEXT 30 DAYS1> 30 DAYS BUT WITHIN NEXT 6 MONTHS2> 6 MONTHS BUT WITHIN NEXT 12 MONTHS 3NO SPECIFIC TIME4DON'T KNOW8REFUSED9
Q102.	On a typical day that you smoke, how soon after you	WITHIN 5 MINUTES1
Q 102.	wake up do you smoke? Would you say within 5 minutes, from 6 to 30 minutes, more than 30 minutes to an hour, or more than an hour?	6 – 30 MINUTES 2 31 – 60 MINUTES 3 MORE THAN 1 HOUR 4 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9
Q103.	If you decided to give up smoking cigarettes altogether, how likely do you think you would be to succeed – very likely, somewhat likely, somewhat unlikely, or very unlikely?	VERY LIKELY
Q104.	During the past 12 months, have you stopped smoking for one day or longer because you were trying to quit smoking?	YES

		DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
	Q105.	How many times during the past 12 months have you stopped smoking for one day or longer because you were trying to quit	 DON'T KNOW
	Q106.	smoking? During the past 12 months, what is the longest length of time you stopped smoking because you were trying to quit smoking?	DAYS WEEKS MONTHS DON'T KNOW
			REFUSED
	Q107.	Thinking back to the last time you tried to quit any of the following? (READ EACH IN RANDOM OF	
		() a. Called a telephone help line or quit line	YES NO DK REF
		() b. Attended a stop smoking clinic, class of	
		() c. Attended one-on-one counseling	
		() d. Sought help or support from friends or	
		() e. Consulted anti-smoking materials on the	
		() f. Consulted anti-smoking books, pamph	nlets, videos or other
		materials	
		() g. Used hypnosis, acupuncture or laser	
	Q108.	The last time you tried to quit smoking in the	YES1
	~	past 12 months, did you try to give up	NO2
		cigarettes by quitting "cold turkey" or all at	DON'T KNOW8
		once?	REFUSED9
		IF NO, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
		Q108x. The last time you tried to quit smoki EACH IN RANDOM ORDER)?	ng in the past 12 months, did you (READ
		() a tracta quit by gradually outting	YES NO DK REF
		() b. try to quit by switching to chev	
		() c. use nicotine products, such a	
		lozenges	
		() d. use a prescription pill such as Bupropion (BOO-PRO-PE-ON),	
			LINE) or Chantix (CHAN-TIX) . 1289
Q109.	Durina	the past 12 months, did any doctor, dentist,	YES1
Q 100.		or other health professional advise you to quit	NO
	smokin		DON'T KNOW8
		-	REFUSED9
	IF YES, I	DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
	Q110.	During the past 12 months, when a doctor,	YES1
		dentist, nurse or other health professionals	NO2
		advised you to quit smoking cigarettes, did	DON'T KNOW
	1	they recommend or prescribe nicotine gum,	REFUSED9

IF Q87 = YES AND Q88 = NOT AT ALL, ASK:

		ou when you first started to smoke regularly?	DON'T KNOW		
IF NOT	NEVER, AS	:K:			
Q112.		ou ever smoked cigarettes daily, that ist 1 cigarette every day for 30 days in	NO DON'T KNOW		2 8
	IF YES, A	ASK:			
	Q113.	When you last smoked every day, on the average, about how many cigarettes did you smoke each day? (ONE PACK USUALLY EQUALS 20 CIGARETTES)		_	
	Q114.	Altogether, about how many years did you smoke every day? Do not include any time you stayed off cigarettes for 6 months or longer.		_YEARS	
Q115.		this time 12 months ago, were you g cigarettes every day, some days, or ll?	SOME DAYS NOT AT ALL DON'T KNOW		2 3 8
Q116.		ow long has it been since you tely quit smoking cigarettes?	DON'T KNOW	_ YEARS _ MONTHS _ WEEKS _ DAYS	
			REFUSED		
	IF LESS	THAN 16 YEARS, ASK:			
	Q117.	During the year before you quit smoking completely, how soon after you woke up did you smoke? Would you say within 5 minutes, from 6 to 30 minutes, more than 30 minutes to an hour, or more than an hour?	6 – 30 MINUTES 31 – 60 MINUTE MORE THAN 1 H DON'T KNOW	ES S OUR	2 3 4 8
	Q120.	During the year before you quit smoking completely, did any doctor, dentist, nurse or other health professional advise you to quit smoking?	NO DON'T KNOW		2 8

	Q121.	quit smo when a c or other advised cigarette recomm	ne year before you king completely, doctor, dentist, nurse health professionals you to quit smoking is, did they end or prescribe gum, a patch or other product?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED
Q122a.	smoking a lighter	cigarette	efore you quit ely, did you smoke ?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED
	Q122b.	Did you a cigarette from a si cigarette	s or did you switch tronger to a lighter	ALWAYS SMOKED LIGHTER CIGARETTES SWITCHED TO LIGHTER CIGARETTE DON'T KNOW REFUSED
			Is this because you thought it less harmful or because	LESS HARMFUL HOW YOU QUIT SMOKING NEITHER DON'T KNOW REFUSED
Q118.			moking completely, c ORDER, ASKING:) Did	id you do any of the following? (READ you do this? <u>YES NO DK</u>
	()b. / ()c. / ()d. 3 ()e. () ()f. (Attended Attended Sought he Consulted World Wi Consulted other mat	a stop smoking clinic one-on-one counsel elp or support from fi d anti-smoking materi de Web d anti-smoking books terials	r quit line
Q119.	When you f	ou quit sn try to give	nosis, acupuncture on noking completely, up cigarettes by ey" or all at once?	or laser 1 28 YES NO DON'T KNOW

1	IF NO, ASK:
	Q119x. When you quit smoking completely, did you (READ EACH ITEM IN RANDOM ORDER)?
	YES NO DK REF
	() a. try to quit by gradually cutting back on cigarettes 1 289
	() b. try to quit by switching to chewing tobacco, snuff, cigars or pipes
	() c. use nicotine products, such as gum, the patch or lozenges
	 () d. use a prescription pill such as Zyban (ZY-BAN), Bupropion (BOO-PRO-PE-ON), Wellbutrin (WELL- BOO-TRIN), Varenicline (VAR-EN-IK-LINE) or Chantix (CHAN-TIX)

IF Q87 = NO OR Q88 = NOT AT ALL, DK OR REF, ASK:

Q123.		v many of the past 7 days were you around ne else's cigarette, cigar or pipe smoke in your	DAYS DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
	IF >0, A	SK:		
	Q124.	In the past week, about how long were you exposed to other people's tobacco smoke in your home? Would you say 1-9 minutes, 10-29 minutes, 30-59 minutes, 1 to 3 hours, or more than 3 hours?	1 – 9 MINUTES 10 – 29 MINUTES 30 – 59 MINUTES 1 – 3 HOURS > 3 HOURS PON'T KALOW	2 3 4 5
			DON'T KNOW REFUSED	

TOBACCO POLICY SUBSAMPLE 5 QUESTIONS HERE

ALCOHOL QUESTIONS

Q125. If a drink is considered one can or bottle of beer, one glass of wine or cocktail or shot of liquor... during the past month, have you had at least one drink of any alcoholic beverage such as beer, wine, wine coolers or liquor? REFUSED.....

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF YES, A	ASK:			
Q126.	During the past 30 days, on how many days have you had at least one drink of any alcoholic beverages?		DAYS	98
	Just your best estimate.	REFUSED		99
Q127.	On the days that you drank alcohol during the past month, how many drinks did you have on average?	DON'T KNOW		8
	(IF LESS THAN ONE, ENTER "0")	REFUSED		9
Q128.	Considering all types of alcohol, how many times		TIMES	0
	during the past month did you have (IF MALE: 5) (IF FEMALE: 4) or more drinks on the same occasion?			8 9

ALCOHOL AND METH SUBSAMPLE 4 QUESTIONS AM5 - AM7 HERE

Q129. In the past year, have you used any form of <u>methamphetamines</u> (METH-AM-FET-AH-MEENS) or speed not prescribed for you by a doctor, even just one time? (IF NECESSARY, SAY: Such as crystal, crank or ice.)

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

Q130. In your opinion, how serious of a health issue is methamphetamine (METH-AM-FET-AH-MEEN) use in your community – very serious, somewhat serious, not too serious or not at all serious?

VERY SERIOUS	1
SOMEWHAT SERIOUS	2
NOT TOO SERIOUS	3
NOT AT ALL SERIOUS	4
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

ALCOHOL AND METH SUBSAMPLE 4 QUESTIONS AM1 - AM4 HERE

AIDS/HIV RISK

So that the County can help prevent the spread of H-I-V and other infections that are spread through sex, we need to know about the sexual practices of the general public. Some of these questions are rather personal. <u>Your answers are completely confidential.</u>

Q130x. During the past 12 months, have you had any sexual	YES	1
partners?	NO	2
•	DON'T KNOW	8

IF YES, ASK:

• NO	TE: IF MALE, ASK Q131, THEN Q132. IF FEMALE, ASK Q132,	THEN Q131.		
Q131.	During the past 12 months, with how many <u>men</u> have you had sex?	DON'T KNOW	MEN	
Q132.	During the past 12 months, with how many <u>women</u> have you had sex?	DON'T KNOW	WOMEN	98
	uding blood donations, during the past 2 years, have en tested for H-I-V, the virus that causes AIDS?	NO DON'T KNOW		2 8

IF YES, ASK:

Q133.

Q134.	How many times in the past year have you been	TIMES
	tested?	DON'T KNOW
		REFUSED
Q135.	Which of the following best describes the main reaso CATEGORIES)?	on for your most recent H-I-V test (READ
	(IF FEMALE UNDER AGE 50): You were pregna	Int1
		ent, military service, or some other reason)2
	You were in a new relationship	4
		sk5
	– or – Some other reason	6
_	O NOT READ { DON'T KNOW	8
D		Q

Q136. Which of the following <u>best describes</u> where you got your most recent H-I-V test (READ CATEGORIES)? DO NOT REAL	a family planning clinic
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------------------

STD TESTING SUBSAMPLE 3 QUESTIONS HIV 1 - 4 HERE

(IF MAL	E AGE 18-49 AND Q132 > 0) <u>OR</u> (IF FEMALE AGE 18-49 AND Q131 >0	AND IF Q76x ≠ 1), ASK:	
Q138.	About how many times during the last 12 months have you had sex <u>without</u> using a condom or other kind of birth control? (READ CATEGORIES)?	 more than 10 times 6-10 times 3-5 times 1-2 times you never use condoms or birth control or – you always use condoms or 	2 3 4
	DO NOT READ	birth control	8

(IF RESPONDENT IS MALE AND Q131 OR Q132 > 0) OR (IF FEMALE AND Q131 > 0), ASK:

Q139.	The last time you had sex, did you or your partner use a condom?	YES	
		DON'T KNOW	~

IF FEMALE AGE 18-49 AND Q131 > 0 AND Q76x \neq 1 OR Q77x 1, ASK:

Q140.	I am going to read some other methods of pregnancy prevention, and please tell me if it applied
	to you the last time you had sex. (INTERVIEWER: READ ITEMS IN ORDER AND STOP ONCE ANY YES
	RESPONSE IS GIVEN)

	<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
a. You had your tubes tied	89
b. Your partner had a vasectomy	89
c. You used birth control pills, a patch or ring	89
d. You have an IUD	89
e. You used the Depo-Provera shot	89
f. You used a diaphragm or cervical cap	89
g. You used foam, jelly or sponge	89
h. You used the withdrawal method	
i. You used the rhythm method	89
j. You are infertile or menopausal (MEN-O-PAWS-AL)	89
k. You used a contraceptive implant	89
I. You or your partner used some other method	

IF AGE 18-49, ASK:

Q141.	Have you heard of emergency contraception, or the	YES	1
	morning-after pill?	NO	2
	5	DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9

Q142.	(FEMALE: Have you) (MALE: Has your partne used emergency contraception or the morning-after pill?	r) YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED
	IF YES, ASK:	
	Q142x. Did this occur in the past 12 months?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED
	Q143. When (FEMALE: you) (MALE: your pathe morning-after pill, did (you) (she	artner) last used emergency contraception a) get it by (READ LIST)?
	Going to a pharmacy and Getting pills directly from a Taking extra doses of regu From a friend or family me From some other source .	doctor or health provider gave you getting it <u>without</u> a doctor's prescription o clinic or doctor's office ular birth control pills mber
	IF Q143 = 2, ASK:	
	Q144. When (FEMALE: you) (MALE your partner) last purchase emergency contraception the pharmacy, did (you) (she) have to show identification?	ed NO

STD TESTING SUBSAMPLE QUESTIONS HIV 5 - 8 HERE

DEMOGRAPHIC QUESTIONS

Finally, some questions about yourself for classification purposes...

Q145.		ou born in California, in some other state in the U.S. or the United States?	CALIFORNIA
	IF OUTS	IDE THE U.S., ASK:	
	Q146.	In which country were you born? (SEE CODES)	COUNTRY CODE
	Q147.	How many years have you lived in the United States? (IF LESS THAN ONE YEAR, ENTER "0")	YEARS DON'T KNOW

Q148.	Are you currently a U.S. citizen or not?	U.S. CITIZEN1 NOT A U.S. CITIZEN2	
		DON'T KNOW8 REFUSED9	

The next few questions ask about your ethnic and racial background...

Q151.	Are you of Latino or Hispanic origin? (IF NECESSARY:) such as	YES, HISPANIC1
	Mexican-American, Latin American, Central or South	NO, NON-HISPANIC2
	American, or Spanish-American?	DON'T KNOW
		REFUSED9

IF YES, HISPANIC, ASK:

		, ASK.	
Q152.		u of Mexican ancestry or some other Hispanic ry? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	MEXICAN
	IF OTHE	R, ASK:	
	Q153.	Which of the following best describes your	Salvadoran1
		(other) Hispanic ancestry or ethnic origin? (READ CATEGORIES) (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	Guatemalan2
			Costa Rican3
			Honduran4
			Nicaraguan5
			Panamanian6
		South American7	
			Spanish-American8
			Cuban9
			Puerto Rican 10
			Other (SPECIFY) 11
		DO NOT READ	6 DON'T KNOW

DON'T KNOW......8 REFUSED9 IF ASIAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER, ASK: Which of the following best describes your Asian Chinese.....1 Q155. ancestry or ethnic origin? (READ CATEGORIES) (ANSWER Korean2 CAN BE A MULTIPLE) Japanese4 Vietnamese.....5 Asian Indian.....6 Cambodian7 Hawaiian8 Guamanian.....9 Samoan 10 Laotian/Hmong......11 Other (SPECIFY) _____ . 12 DO NOT READ

Q156	Are you or are any of your ancestors from Armenia	YES	
	(ARM-E-NEE-AH)?	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
What	languages are spoken in your home? (ANSWER CAN BE A	ENGLISH	
MULTI	PLE)	SPANISH	
		MANDARIN	
		CANTONESE	
		CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)	
		KOREAN	
		VIETNAMESE	
		TAGOLOG	
		ARMENIAN	
		RUSSIAN	
		JAPANESE	
		HMONG	
		OTHER (SPECIFY)	
	(DON'T KNOW	
	DO NOT READ {	REFUSED	
	C.		
	TIPLE LANGUAGES, ASK:		
Q158	Which language is spoken most often?	ENGLISH	
		SPANISH	
		MANDARIN	
		CANTONESE	
		CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)	
	KOREAN		
		VIETNAMESE	
		TAGOLOG	•••••
		ARMENIAN	
		RUSSIAN	
		JAPANESE	
		HMONG	
		OTHER (SPECIFY)	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
What	is the highest level of school you have completed or the	8TH GRADE OR LESS	
	st degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	GRADES 9-12	
	was the highest grade you completed?	HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE	
vvnat	was the highest grade you completed :	SOME COLLEGE/TRADE SCHOOL	
		ASSOCIATES DEGREE	
		COLLEGE GRADUATE	
		POST-GRADUATE DEGREE	
		DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
	PRISON SUBSAMPLE 3 QUESTIONS HI	ERE	
	pical week, do you access the Internet, or the World	YES	
Wide	Web, through a computer?	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	

0404					4	
Q161.	what is	your ma	arital status? Are you… (READ CATEGORIES)?	married		
				domestic partners		
				not married but living together		
				widowed		
				divorced		
				separated		
				never married		
			DO NOT READ {	DON'T KNOW		
			l	REFUSED	9	
	IF MALE,	ASK:				
	Q162a.	For clas	ssification purposes, do you think of yourself as			
		homose	exual or gay (that is, sexually attracted only to	HETEROSEXUAL/STRAIGHT	2	
			neterosexual or straight (that is, sexually	BISEXUAL	3	
		attracte	ed only to women), bisexual (that is, sexually	SOMETHING ELSE	4	
		attracte	ed to men and women), unsure (that is,	UNSURE/QUESTIONING	5	
		uncerta	ain or questioning), or something else?	REFUSED	9	
	IF FEMAI	,	ssification purposes, do you think of yourself as	HOMOSEXUAL/GAY/LESBIAN	1	
			exual, gay or lesbian (that is, sexually attracted	HOMOSEXUAL/GAY/LESBIAN HETEROSEXUAL/STRAIGHT		
				BISEXUAL		
			only to women), heterosexual or straight (that is, sexually attracted only to men), bisexual (that is,		-	
			y attracted to men and women), unsure (that is,	SOMETHING ELSE		
			ain or questioning), or something else?	REFUSED		
		uncenta		REFUSED	9	
Q163.	Includin	a vourse	elf, how many people currently live in your			
u	househ					
				REFUSED		
		TUANON				
			NE PERSON LIVING IN HOUSEHOLD, ASK:			
	Q164.	(Including yourself,) how many are adults age 65 or older?		~~		
			DON'T KNOW			
			REFUSED	99		
	Q165.	Q165. (Including yourself,) how many are adults between the ages of 18 and 64?				
				98		
				REFUSED		
		_				
	Q166.	166. Are there any children under age 18 currently living i your household?		YES	1	
			ousehold?	NO		
					DON'T KNOW	8
					REFUSED	9
		IF YES, /	ASK:			
		<u> </u>	How many are teens between the ages of			
		Q107.	12 and 17?	DON'T KNOW	08	
			REFUSED			
		Q168. How many are children between the ages of 6 and 11? Q169. How many are children between the ages of		00		
				00		
			DON'T KNOW			
			REFUSED	99		
			How many are children between the ages of			
		-	0 and 5?	DON'T KNOW	98	
				REFUSED		
		L				

- Q170. Excluding cell phones and fax lines, does your household have more than one telephone number that I could have dialed to reach you?
- Q171a. In the past three years, was there ever a time when your household was without basic telephone service for one month or longer? By this we mean you had no working phone lines coming into your home. Please do <u>not</u> include cell phones.

IF YES, ASK:

Q171b. During this period, did you or did anyone else in your household have a cell phone?

YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8
YES NO DON'T KNOW	2

	0
REFUSED	9

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

	HOUSEHOLD TYPE SUBSAMPLE 5 QUESTIONS H	11 – HH3 HERE
Q173.	In what city or town do you live? (SEE CODES)	CITY CODE
Q174.	What is your current ZIP code? (ALL ZIP CODES MUST BEGIN WITH "9")	ZIP CODE
Q175a.	We don't need to know exactly, but just roughly could you tell me if your annual household income from all sources before taxes is less than \$10,000, between \$10,000 and \$20,000, between \$20,000 and \$30,000, between \$30,000 and \$40,000, between \$40,000 and \$50,000, between \$50,000 and \$75,000, between \$75,000 and \$100,000, between \$100,000 and \$150,000, or more than \$150,000?	LESS THAN \$10,000
	IF APPLICABLE, ASK: Q175b. Was your total annual household income before taxes less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRESHOLD FOR 200% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	LESS THAN 200% FPL1 MORE THAN 200% FPL
	IF APPLICABLE, ASK:	LESS THAN 100% FPL1
	Q175c. Was your total annual household income before taxes less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRESHOLD FOR 100% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	MORE THAN 100 % FPL 1 MORE THAN 100% FPL 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9
	IF APPLICABLE OR IF Q175a = "DON'T KNOW" OR "REFUSED", ASK:	
	Q175d. (Was) (Can you tell me whether) your total annual household income before taxes (was) less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRESHOLD FOR 300% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	LESS THAN 300% FPL

IF LESS THAN 300% OR UNCLASSIFIABLE, ASK:

	Q182.	Thinking back over the past 5 years, was there ever a time when you were homeless or did not have your own place to sleep?	YES
Q183a.	areas of	terested in grouping respondents into geographic the County. What is your address there? SSARY, SAY: It will not be shared with anyone.)	STREET ADDRESS: REFUSEDREF
	IF REFUS	ES TO PROVIDE EXACT ADDRESS, ASK:	
	Q183b.	Then can you give me the street that you live on and the closest street that crosses it? (DO NOT ENTER PARALLEL STREETS) (INTERVIEWER: ENTER COMPLETE STREET NAME, INCLUDING "ROAD," "BOULEVARD," "AVENUE," "STREET," ETC. FOLLOWING NAME) (AFTER ENTRY, CONFIRM BY SAYING: "And these two streets are cross-streets; that is, they cross each other? Is that correct?")	STREET #1: STREET #2: REFUSEDREF

FOLLOW-UP SURVEY SCREENING QUESTIONS

IF FEMALE AND ANY TEENS OR CHILDREN UNDER AGE 18 IN HOUSEHOLD, ASK:

Q184a.	Are you the parent or legal guardian of (the child) (any of the children) under age 18 who live(s) in your household? (Q181a)
	YES
	IF RESPONDENT IS MOTHER/FEMALE LEGAL GUARDIAN, ASK:
	Q184b. We would like to ask some additional questions about the health and health care needs of (your child) (one of your children). May we continue? (Q181b)
	MOTHER AVAILABLE NOW
	IF RESPONDENT UNWILLING TO CONTINUE:
	Q184c. Is there another parent or legal guardian who can talk to us about the health and health care needs of the children under age 18 who live in this household? (Q181c)
	NEW PERSON COMES TO PHONE
	 IF PARENT IS ABLE TO CONTINUE THE INTERVIEW, PROCEED IMMEDIATELY TO PARENT QUESTIONNAIRE.
	 IF CALLBACK IS REQUIRED: ASK FOR PARENT'S FIRST NAME CONFIRM TELEPHONE NUMBER ASK WHEN WOULD BE GOOD TIME TO CALL BACK SKIP TO END

Q185a.	We would like to speak to the mother of the child(ren) under age 18 who live(s) in this household about the health and health care needs of her child(ren). Is she available now? (Q182a)
	MOTHER AVAILABLE NOW
	♦ IF TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER PERSON, PROCEED IMMEDIATELY TO CHILD QUESTIONNAIRE.
	 IF NOT AVAILABLE NOW, ARRANGE FOR A CALLBACK BY SAYING: We would like to call back your household to arrange an interview with the mother or legal guardian of (the child) (any of the children) under age 18 in the household. When would be a good time to call back? ASK FOR MOTHER'S FIRST NAME CONFIRM TELEPHONE NUMBER SKIP TO END
	♦ IF RESPONDENT IS UNWILLING TO COOPERATE FURTHER:
	THANK RESPONDENT FOR PARTICIPATING IN THE SURVEY AND SKIP TO END
	IF MOTHER OF CHILD DOES NOT LIVE IN HH, ASK:
	Q185b. Are you the parent or legal guardian of the child(ren) under age 18 who live(s) in this household (Q182b)
	YES
	IF YES, PARENT OR GUARDIAN, ASK:
	Q185c. We would like to ask some additional questions about the health and healthcare needs of (one of) your (child) (children). May we continue? (Q182c)
	CONTINUE
	IF SOMEONE ELSE, ASK:
	Q185d. Is there another parent or legal guardian who can talk to us about the health and health care needs of the (child) (children) living in this household? May I speak with that personow? (Q182d)
	NEW PERSON COMES TO PHONE
	IF NEW PERSON CALLBACK REQUIRED, SAY:
	Q185e. We would like to ask some additional questions about the health and health care needs of (this child) (these children). May we call back to have (him) (her participate in this follow-up study of parents? (Q182e)
	YES
	 IF WILLING TO TRANSFER OR AGREES TO CALLBACK TO OTHER PERSON IN HOUSEHOLD: ASK FOR FIRST NAME OF OTHER PERSON IF AVAILABLE, ASK TO SPEAK WITH HIM/HER IF NOT AVAILABLE, ASK FOR BEST TIME TO CALL BACK THANK RESPONDENT FOR PARTICIPATING IN THE SURVEY AND SKIP TO END

Q186.	We can conduct the survey with the (mother) (parent or legal guardian) of (any of) the (child) (children) under age 18 who live in this household in any of the following languages – English, Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, Korean or Vietnamese. Would they prefer to be interviewed in a language other than English? (FQSE)	NO, CONTINUE IN ENGLISH $1 \rightarrow \text{GO TO Q188}$ OTHER LANGUAGE $2 \rightarrow \text{ASK Q187}$ DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED
	IF YES, ASK:	

	0.5.4.1011	
RECORD LANGUAGE OR ASK: Which one? (FQSF)	SPANISH	Z
	MANDARIN	3
	CANTONESE	4
	CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)	5
	KOREAN	6
	VIETNAMESE	7
	ASIAN UNSPECIFIED	8
	OTHER	11
	DON'T KNOW	
	REFUSED	

• IF CALLBACK REQUIRED, GO TO Q188; OTHERWISE, CONTINUE TO CHILD SURVEY

IF OKAY TO CALL BACK, SAY: Q188. So that we know whom to ask for when we call back, can I please have the first name to ask for? (INTERVIEWER: ENTER FIRST NAME OR INITIALS OF PERSON TO ASK FOR) (Q184) YES1 Q189a. Just to confirm, (NAME) (you) can be reached at this telephone number: (READ BACK TELEPHONE NUMBER). CHANGED PHONE NUMBER......2 Is this correct? (Q185a) REFUSED......9 IF CHANGED PHONE NUMBER, ASK: Q189b. INTERVIEWER: VERIFY AND ENTER TELEPHONE NUMBER. (Q185b) Q190a. Are there any other alternative phone numbers where (NAME) YES1 (you) can be reached? (Q186a) NO......2 DON'T KNOW......8 REFUSED9 IF YES, ALTERNATE NUMBER, ASK: Q190b. What is this number, area code first? (Q186b) AREA CODE: NUMBER: Q191. When would be a good time to call back? (Q187) ENTER PREFERRED DAY ENTER PREFERRED TIME

IF NOT ELIGIBLE, ASK:

Q187.

Q192.	We may be conducting a follow-up survey over the coming	YES1
	year or so. Would it be alright if we called your household back	
	at that time? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) All answers are completely	DON'T KNOW8
	confidential. (Q190)	REFUSED9

These are all the questions I have. Thank you very much for participating in this important survey.

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY — Subsample 1 —

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

H1. I would like to ask you some questions about the effectiveness of programs and services provided by the Los Angeles County Health Department. (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) How effective do you feel these programs and services are – very effective, somewhat effective, not too effective or not at all effective?

	EF	VERY SOMEWHAT NOT TOO NOT AT ALL FECTIVE EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE DK REF
	() a. assuring food safety, such as through grading restaurants or inspecting supermarkets and other places that sell food	1
	 b. protecting the public from the spread of infectious (IN-FEK-SHUS) diseases such as AIDS, hepatitis (HEP-AH-TI-TIS) and tuberculosis (TOO-BUR-CUE-LO-SIS))1
	 c. protecting the public from diseases that can be spread by terrorists, such as smallpox, anthrax, and other germs 	1
	() d. tracking health trends in the County and reporting this information back to residents, health care organizations, and other interested persons	1
Н3.	From which of the following sources do you get health-related information – radio, TV, the Internet, newspapers or magazines, from a doctor or health care provider, from family friends or co-workers, or from another source? (ANSWER CAN A MULTIPLE)	TELEVISION2 /, THE INTERNET
H4.	Would you think to notify the Public Health Department if you believed you or your family had gotten food poisoning? (IF NECESSARY:) This could be from any commercial food sour such as at a restaurant, cafeteria, lunchroom, catered event, take out, delivered food or from a street vendor.	NO2
BUILT	ENVIRONMENT	
BE1.	How likely would you be to take public transportation if it we accessible – very likely, somewhat likely, somewhat unlikely or very unlikely?	
	VERY UNLIKELY", ASK:	

BE2.	How long would you be willing to walk to get to public	MINUTES	
	transportation? How many minutes?	WOULD NOT DO THIS	97
		DON'T KNOW	98
		REFUSED	99

BE2x.	Are there safe places to be physically active in your	YES1
	neighborhood, including sidewalks and streets for walking or	NO2
	jogging?	DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9

IF EMPLOYED (Q43 = 1 OR 2), ASK:

BE3.		a have the opportunity to do physical activity or se at work?	YES
	IF NO C	R DON'T KNOW, ASK:	
	BE4.	Why do you not have the opportunity to exercise at work? Would you say it's because there are no exercise facilities, because the neighborhood where you work is not safe, because you don't have time to exercise at work, because you don't want to exercise at work, or some other reason? (ANSWER MAY BE A MULTIPLE)	NO FACILITIES TO EXERCISE IN

- BE5. How many cars, vans and trucks do you have at home for use?
- BE6. When your errands are within one mile of your house, do you usually drive, walk, ride a bike, take a bus or metro, get a ride or something else, or are there no errands you have within a mile of your house?

VEHICLES	
DON'T KNOW	98
REFUSED	99
DRIVE	1
WALK	2
BIKE	3
TAKE A BUS/METRO	4
GET A RIDE	
OTHER	6
NO ERRANDS WITHIN ONE MILE	7
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF DRIVE OR GET A RIDE, ASK:

BE7.	. Do you (drive) (get a ride) because (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)?		
		<u>YES NO DK REF</u>	
	() a. There are no sidewalks	1 289	
	() b. There is no public transportation	1 289	
	() c. You have large or heavy packages, or other passengers with you	1 289	
	() d. You prefer to do errands on your way to or from other places	1 289	
	() e. You feel your neighborhood is unsafe	1 289	

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108

198-014 103007 Final

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 2 -

NUTRITION

These next few questions are about nutrition.

N1.	How healthy do you think your diet is? Would you say it is	VERY HEALTHY	1
	very healthy, somewhat healthy, somewhat unhealthy, or	SOMEWHAT HEALTHY	
	very unhealthy?	SOMEWHAT UNHEALTHY	-
		DON'T KNOW	
NO	What do you think your boolthight would bo?	REFUSED	9
N2.	What do you think your healthiest weight would be?	I BS.	

hat do you think your healthiest weight would be

LBS.	
DON'T KNOW9	98
REFUSED 9	99

IF N1 = 2, 3, 4, 8 OR 9, ASK:

N3.	Are any of the following reasons why you do not eat healthier meals? (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER) Is this a reason why you don't eat healthier?
	<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
	() a. You don't want to give up the foods you like9
	() b. It takes too much time or effort to prepare healthy meals
	() c. You don't know or understand nutrition guidelines9
	() d. It costs too much to purchase foods that are nutritious9
	() e. You prefer to eat at restaurants or get take-out
N4.	On an average day, about how many sodas or sweetened PER DAY
	drinks such as Gatorade, Red Bull or Sunny Delight do you RARELY/NEVER
	drink? Do not include diet sodas or sugar-free drinks. Please DON'T KNOW
	count a 12-ounce can, bottle or glass as one drink. REFUSED
N5.	How many calories do you think are in a (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)? Just your best estimate.
	CALORIES <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
	() a. a bottle of beer, such as Budweiser or Michelob (not including light beers) 9998.9999
	() b. hamburger (such as a Big Mac or Whopper)
	() c. can of Coke or Pepsi
N6.	I am going to read some statements about nutrition-related issues and, for each, please tell me whether you agree or disagree. (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER:) Do you agree or disagree?
	<u>AGREE</u> <u>DISAGREE</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
	() a. It is a good idea to post calorie information on restaurant menus and menu boards
	() b. I would support a tax increase on sodas as a way to discourage kids and others from drinking too many of them9
	() c. Eating at fast food restaurants can increase the chance of becoming overweight or obese
	() d. There should be restrictions placed on the advertising of sugared cereals, candy, sodas, and fast foods to children

- N7. Have you seen, read or heard anything about the dangers of trans fats in foods?
- N8. Trans fats are vegetable oils found in margarines, and some types of processed vegetable oils and shortening used frequently for frying and baked goods. Trans fat consumption has been shown to significantly increase the risk of cardiovascular disease and deaths. Trans fats increase the bad type of cholesterol, LDL, and reduce the good cholesterol, HDL. Do you think there should be restrictions or limitations placed on the use of trans fats in restaurants?

YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8
YES NO DON'T KNOW	2
REFUSED	9

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108 198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 3 -

PETS

P1. Do you have a pet?

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF YES	S, ASK:		
P2.	How many dogs do you have?	DOGS DON'T KNOW REFUSED	_
P3.	How many cats do you have?	CATS DON'T KNOW REFUSED	-
P4.	How many birds do you have?	BIRDS DON'T KNOW REFUSED	

SLEEP

SL1.	On average, how many hours of sleep do you get in a 24- hour period? (round to the nearest hour)	HOURS DON'T KNOW
SL2.	On average, how many hours of sleep do you think you need in a 24-hour period? (round to the nearest hour)	HOURS DON'T KNOW
STD T	ESTING	
HIV1	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: "H-I-V testing should be included as part of a person's routine blood work when seeking medical services."?	AGREE
	IF DISAGREE, DON'T KNOW OR REFUSED, ASK:	
	HIV2. The U.S. Center for Disease Control and Prevention, part of the federal government, now recommends that all individuals age 13-64 be tested for H-I-V as part of routine medical care. Knowing this, do you agree or disagree that all adults should be periodically tested for H-I-V?	AGREE
HIV3.	Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: "Medications taken during pregnancy and birth can reduce or prevent H-I-V transmission from mother to child."?	AGREE

HIV4.	How comfortable would you feel talking to your health care provider about H-I-V – very comfortable, somewhat	VERY COMFORTABLE	
	comfortable, not too comfortable, or not at all comfortable?	NOT TOO COMFORTABLE	3
		NOT AT ALL COMFORTABLE	
		DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9

Sexually transmitted diseases, or STDs, are infections you can get from having sex. Syphilis (SIF-IL-LIS), gonorrhea (GAHN-OR-E-AH), Chlamydia (CLAM-ID-E-AH), herpes (HER-PEES), and genital warts are all types of STDs.

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

NO......2 DON'T KNOW......8

FVES ASK:

HIV5. Have you ever been tested for STDs?

IF YES,	ASK.	
HIV6.	Was this within the past twelve months?	YES1
		NO2
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9
Has a	doctor or nurse ever told you that you had an STD?	YES1

HIV7. Has a doctor or nurse ever told you that you had an STD?

HIV8.	Which STD? (READ LIST IF NECESSARY) (ANSWER CAN	Chlamydia	1
	BE A MULTIPLE)	Gonorrhea	2
		Genital herpes	3
		HPV/human papillomavirus	
		(PAP-ILL-OH-MAH-VY-RUS)	4
		Syphilis	5
		Genital warts	6
		Other	7
		C DON'T KNOW	8
	DO NOT READ	DON'T KNOW	9

PRISON

YES1 P1. Have you ever spent any time in a correctional facility, jail, prison, or detention center as an adult, that is, when you were NO......2 age 18 years or older? DON'T KNOW......8 REFUSED......9

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 4 –

ALCOHOL & METH

IF Q30 NOT METHAMPHETAMINE OR Q129 NOT YES, ASK:

AM1.	Do you personally know anyone who has used methamphetamines or speed not prescribed by a doctor, even just one time?	YES
	IF YES, ASK:	
	AM2. Is this person or persons a family member or spouse, a friend, a co-worker or another acquaintance? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	FAMILY MEMBER/SPOUSE1FRIEND2CO-WORKER3ANOTHER ACQUAINTANCE4DON'T KNOW8REFUSED9
AM3.	During the past 30 days, have you seen, read or heard anything about methamphetamines?	YES
AM4.	Do you agree or disagree with the following statements? (READ you agree or disagree?	TEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) DO
	() a. Methamphetamines are highly addictive	
	 () b. Methamphetamines can be easily made with commor products in your own home 	household
AM5.	An alcopop (AL-CO-POP) is a term used to describe bottled alcoholic beverages that resemble sweet and fruity drinks such as soda and lemonade. Examples of alcopops include Mike's Hard Lemonade, Skyy Blue, Bacardi Silver, and Jack Daniel's Country Coolers. During the past <u>30 days</u> how many	0 TIMES
	times did you drink an alcopop beverage?	REFUSED

AM7. Please tell me whether you agree or disagree with each of the following statements. (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER:)

			AGREE	DISAGREE	<u>DK</u>	REF
() a.	Alcopops taste better than beer or other drinks that contain alcohol	1	2	8.	9
() b.	You can't get as drunk drinking alcopops compared to other forms of		0	~	•
		alcohol	1	2	8.	9
() c.	Women drink alcopops more than men	1	2	8.	9
() d.	Alcopops advertisements target adults more than youth	1	2	8.	9
() e.	Alcopops are easy to get	1	2	8.	9
() f.	Advertisements for alcopops are cool because they use good-looking				
		men and women	1	2	8.	9

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108 198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 5 -

TOBACCO POLICY

T5.

Τ1.	In your opinion, how harmful is <u>tobacco use to one's health</u> – very harmful, somewhat harmful, not too harmful, not al all harmful?	VERY HARMFUL
T2.	In your opinion, how harmful is <u>exposure to second-hand</u> <u>smoke to one's health</u> – very harmful, somewhat harmful, not too harmful, not at all harmful?	VERY HARMFUL
ТЗ.	In your opinion, how serious of a health issue is <u>cigarette use</u> by minors – very serious, somewhat serious, not too serious or not at all serious?	VERY SERIOUS

T4. I am going to read some statements about tobacco related issues and, for each, please tell me whether you agree or disagree. (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) Do you agree or disagree?

	•			AGREE	DISAGREE	DK	REF
() a.	Store owners should be licensed to sell cigarettes in th are licensed to sell liquor or beer		у			
() b.	Films that contain smoking should be rated "R", which p of children under 17 unless accompanied by a parent or			2	8	9
() c.	All employee health insurance plans should cover serv who want to quit			2	8	9
() d.	It is easy for youth under age 18 to buy cigarettes in Lo	os Angeles Cour	nty 1	2	8	9
() e.	Store owners should be penalized for selling tobacco to	o minors	1	2	8	9
() f.	Cigarettes should not be sold in pharmacies		1	2	8	9
() g.	The distribution of free or low-cost tobacco products, correbates should be prohibited		1	2	8	9
() h.	There should be more programs in Los Angeles Count quit smoking			2	8	9
) i.	Health care facilities, such as hospitals and clinics, sho in outdoor areas including doorways, facilities grounds	, parking lots, ar	nd	0	•	0
		walkways		1	2	8.	9
Do	you	favor or oppose a law requiring separate smoking	FAVOR				1
		n-smoking units in multi-unit housing, such as	OPPOSE				
ар	artme	ents, to protect non-smokers from exposure to second	DON'T KNOW				
ha	nd sr	noke?	REFUSED				9

T6.			favor or oppose a law banning smoking in any of the following outdoor NRANDOM ORDER)?	· public areas (READ				
				FAVOR	OPPOSE	<u>DK</u>	REF	
	() a.	outdoor dining areas	1	2	8 .	9	
	() b.	within 20 feet of public building entrances	1	2	8.	9	
	() c.	in waiting areas such as bus stops, movie lines, or at ATMs	1	2	8.	9	
	() d.	in outdoor entertainment areas, such as amusement parks, zoos, fairgrounds, and sports complexes	1	2	8.	9	
	() e.	parks	1	2	8.	9	
HOUSE	ЕНС	DLD -	ГҮРЕ					

HH1.	family o apartm	h type of housing do you currently live? Is it a single- detached home, a condominium or townhouse, an ent building with 15 or less units, an apartment g with more than 15 units, or something else?	SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED HOME
HH2.	·	currently rent or own?	RENT 1 OWN 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9
	IF RENT	, ASK:	
	HH3.	Is your rental unit a subsidized public housing unit or not? Subsidized housing receives financial assistance from the government to help pay for some rent or utilities.	SUBSIDIZED PUBLIC HOUSING

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 6 -

PANDEMIC FLU

Every 50 years or so, a more deadly form of the seasonal flu, known as <u>pandemic flu</u>, can occur – and sicken and kill many people. Imagine that pandemic flu arrived in your community. In order to keep it from spreading and to protect the safety of children, schools and daycare facilities may be closed for some period of time.

		·	
PF1.	Suppose <u>you</u> had pandemic flu, and health officials recommended that you stay at home, away from people for 7 to 10 days. Is this something you would do?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8
PF2.	Think about what you have in your home right now. For how many days would you be able to stay in your home, without anyone shopping for additional supplies – 1 to 3 days, 4 to 6 days, 7 to 9 days, or 10 days or more?	1-3 4-6 7-9 10 or more Don't know REFUSED	2 3 4 8
PF3.	If public health officials said you should be prepared to take care of members of your household at home for 7 to 10 days if they became sick, would you be able to?	YES NO NOT APPLICABLE DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 3 8
PF4.	What if taking care of that person involved keeping them isolated from others in a separate room and having only one person take care of the sick person for 7 to 10 days. Would you be able to do that?	YES NO NOT APPLICABLE DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 3 8
PF5.	What if another member of your household was sick from pandemic flu and health officials recommended that you and <u>all</u> members of your household should stay at home for 7 to 10 days. Would you be able to do that?	YES NO NOT APPLICABLE DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 3 8
IF EMPL	LOYED (Q43 = 1 OR 2), ASK:		
PF6.	If you were asked to stay home from work for 7 to10 days, would you be able to?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8
PF7.	If you were asked to stay home from work for <u>one month</u> , would you be able to?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8
PF8.	Would it become a serious financial problem if you stayed home from work for 7 to 10 days?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8

PF9.	Would it become a serious financial problem if you stayed home from work for <u>one month</u> ?	YES
PF10.	If public health officials said you should stay home from work, but your employer told you to come to work, would you stay at home or go to work?	STAY AT HOME
PF12.	If you were asked to stay home from work for 7 to 10 days because of a serious outbreak of pandemic flu, would you be able to work at home or telecommute for that long?	YES
PF13.	If you were asked to stay home from work for <u>one month</u> because of a serious outbreak of pandemic flu, would you be able to work at home or telecommute for that long?	YES
PF14.	Do you get paid by the hour or are you salaried? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	PAID BY HOUR
PF15.	Do you have paid sick leave separate from vacation or other personal leave?	YES
	IF YES, ASK: PF16. How many paid sick days are you given each year – less than 5 days, 5 – 10 days, 11 – 15 days or more than 15 days?	LESS THAN 5 DAYS
PF17.	Do you work in the fire, police, public health department, or are you a health care provider?	YES TO ANY

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108 198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY -Subsample 7 -

CHILD POLICY

C1.	How would you rate your community as a place to raise a family – excellent, good, only fair, or poor?	a EXCELLENT
C2.	How would you rate your community on (READ ITEMS IN poor?	RANDOM ORDER) – excellent, good, only fair, or
	 () a. public safety () b. the availability of quality, affordable child care and pre-school 	
	() c. the availability of quality, affordable health care services	
	 () d. the availability of safe places for children to play () e. people's involvement in community issues 	1
C3.	Please tell me how strongly you agree or disagree with e children. (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) Do you disagree or strongly disagree?	
		TRONGLY SOMEWHAT SOMEWHAT STRONGLY <u>AGREE AGREE DISAGREE DISAGREE DK REF</u>
	() a. The prevention of child abuse and child neglect is the sole responsibility of families	1
	() b. The most critical developmental period of life is from the time a child is conceived until age three	1
	 () c. Children's ability to learn cannot be greatly increased or decreased by how parents or others interact with them 	1
	 () d. Having close personal relationships is essential to a child's social, emotional, and health development and school readiness 	
	() e. Children who go to pre-school will do better in later grades than those who don't go to preschoo	l1
	 f. The health and well-being of parents, primary caregivers and other family members is importan to the growth and development of young children 	t
C4.	Thinking about <u>low income</u> working families such as a fa of four earning about \$20,000 or less In your opinion, should the government help pay for all, most, some or no of the child care costs so that <u>low income</u> parents can wo	MOST2 one SOME

Have y L-A?	you ever heard of an organization called First Five	YES
IF YES, C6.	ASK: From which of the following sources have you heard something about First Five L-A (READ CATEGORIES)? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	newspaper,2 your doctor, a social worker or other health professional,3 family or friends4 school or community organizations,5
	DO NOT READ	–or– some other place6 DON'T KNOW
C7.	To the best of your knowledge, which of the following L-A? (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) Do you	
	 () a. children's health insurance () b. preschool () c. telephone help line () d. sporting goods () e. children's clothing () f. eating fruits and vegetables 	1289 1289 1289 1289 1289
C8.	Have you ever heard of a telephone information line for parents called First 5 L-A Parent Helpline?	YES
	IF YES, ASK:	
	C9. From which of the following sources have you heard something about First 5 L-A Parent Helpline (READ CATEGORIES)? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	TV or radio,
	C10. Have you yourself ever called First 5 L-A Parent Helpline?	YES

C5.

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108 198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY – Child Screener – (Sample Augment)

Hello. I'm ______ and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. The Department of Public Health is conducting an important survey among Los Angeles County parents.

A. For this survey we are interested in speaking to parents of Los Angeles County children under age 18. Do any children under age 18 live in this household?

YES1	(CONTINUE)
NO2	(THANK AND TERMINATE)
HOUSEHOLD NOT IN LOS ANGELES	(THANK AND TERMINATE)
RETURN TO CONTACT SCREEN4	
LANGUAGE PROBLEM5	
REFUSEDREF	(CONTINUE)

B1. We would like to speak with the mother of any children under age 18 who live in this household. (IF FEMALE, ASK:) Is that you or someone else? (IF MALE OR OTHER, ASK:) Is that person available now?

RESPONDENT IS MOTHER 1 SOMEONE ELSE IS COMING TO PHONE 2 MOTHER NOT AVAILABLE NOW 3	(GO TO PINTRO)
CHILD IN HOUSEHOLD, BUT MOTHER	
DOES NOT LIVE IN THE HOUSEHOLD	(GO TO C)
NO CHILDREN IN HOUSEHOLD5	(TERMINATE)
LANGUAGE PROBLEMS6	(GO TO PS1)
REFUSEDREF	

IF REFUSED, SAY:

- Your telephone number was randomly generated by a computer.
- We are calling to collect information about the health of children to help the Department better serve the needs of all children in Los Angeles County.
- We are definitely not selling anything or asking for money.
- The survey is absolutely confidential and the answers given will not be associated with your children or your household in any way.
- This is a public health survey sponsored by your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health. If you have any questions about the survey, you may contact the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health at (213) 240-7785.

IF SOMEONE ELSE COMES TO THE PHONE, SAY:

PINTRO.	Hello. I'm and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. The Department of Public Health is conducting an important survey among Los Angeles County parents.				
	IF NECESSARY, SAY:				
	Your telephone number was randomly	generated by a computer.			
		pout the health of children to help the Department			
	We are definitely not selling anything of				
		nd the answers given will not be associated with			
		ed by your Los Angeles County Department of ns about the survey, you may contact the Los Health at (213) 240-7785.			
	CONTINUE LANGUAGE PROBLEMS	2 (GO TO PS1)			
	REFUSED	REF (GO TO B2)			
IF CHILD) IN HOUSEHOLD, BUT MOTHER DOES NOT LIVE IN T	HE HOUSEHOLD -OR- PINTRO = 1 (CONTINUE), ASK:			
C.	Are you the parent or legal guardian of any cl (IF PARENT IS NOT ON PHONE, ASK:) Is that pers	hildren under age 18 who live in this household?			
	RESPONDENT IS MOTHER				
	SOMEONE ELSE IS COMING TO PHONE	· · · · · ·			
	CHILD IN HOUSEHOLD, BUT MOTHER DOES NOT LIVE IN THE HOUSEHOLD	4 (GO TO C)			
	NO CHILDREN IN HOUSEHOLD				
	LANGUAGE PROBLEMS				
	REFUSED	REF (GO TO B2)			
languag Korean interviev	n conduct the survey in any of the following ges – English, Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, or Vietnamese. Would you prefer to be wed in a language other than English?	YES1 (ASK PS2) NO2 (GO TO PS5)			
	OPS1, ASK:				
PS2.	RECORD LANGUAGE OR ASK: Which one? (IF DIFFERENT BILINGUAL INTERVIEWER IS REQUIRED, RECORD APPLICABLE CODE)	SPANISH			
		ASIAN UNSPECIFIED			
		ОТНЕR 11 (GO TO PS4) DON'T KNOW 98 (GO TO PS4)			
		REFUSED			
	IF PS2 = 2-8, SAY:				
	PS3. An interviewer (fluent in) will call you back soon to conduct the			
		y appreciate your participation in this important			

PS1.

PS4.	We can only conduct the interview in English, Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, Korear and Vietnamese. Is there another parent or legal guardian of a child under age 18 in your household who speaks English or one of these languages?
	YES1 (ASK TO SPEAK WITH THAT PERSON)
	NO2 (TERMINATE)

PS5. RECORD GENDER OF PARENT:

Before we begin I need to tell you that my supervisor periodically monitors these interviews to ensure quality and courtesy.

Field Research Corporation 601 California Street, Suite 900 San Francisco, CA 94108 198-014 103007 <u>Final</u>

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY – Child Screener – (Adult Sample Follow-up)

SCREENING QUESTIONS

TRANSFER FROM MAIN QUESTIONNAIRE:

• FIRST NAME, AGE, GENDER, PHONE #, ALTERNATIVE PHONE #S OF PARENT, AND LANGUAGE OF SURVEY

May I speak with **FIRST NAME OF PARENT**?

ONCE PARENT IS ON PHONE, IF CALLBACK TO THE SAME PERSON INTERVIEWED IN THE MAIN SURVEY, SAY:

I'm______and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. Recently you participated in an important telephone survey about health care for the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health. You said we could call back to ask you some questions about the health and health care needs of your child or children. Just to confirm, are you the parent or legal guardian of a child under age 18 living in this household?

(IF YES, RECORD GENDER OF PARENT (PS5) AND GO IMMEDIATELYTO P1a)

IF NOT A PARENT OR GUARDIAN, SAY:

May I speak with the mother of a child under age 18 who lives at this household? (IF NOT AVAILABLE, ASK FOR FIRST NAME OF <u>MOTHER</u> AND BEST TIME TO CALL BACK.)

ONCE PARENT IS ON PHONE, IF NOT THE SAME PERSON INTERVIEWED IN THE MAIN SURVEY, SAY:

I'm ______ and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. Recently a member of your household participated in an important telephone survey about health care for the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health. The Department of Public Health is now asking parents of Los Angeles County children to answer some questions about their children's health and health care needs. Just to confirm, are you the parent or legal guardian of a child under age 18 living in this household?

(IF YES, RECORD GENDER OF PARENT (PS5) AND GO IMMEDIATELYTO P1a)

IF NOT A PARENT OR GUARDIAN, SAY:

May I speak with the mother of a child under age 18 who lives at this household? (IF NOT AVAILABLE, ASK FOR FIRST NAME OF <u>MOTHER</u> AND BEST TIME TO CALL BACK.)

- I'm ______ and I'm calling on behalf of your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, whose role is to promote and protect the health of everyone who lives in Los Angeles County. The Department of Public Health is conducting an important survey of the parents of children throughout the County. We'd like to speak to the mother of any child under age 18 who lives in this household.
- Your telephone number was randomly generated by a computer
- We are definitely <u>not</u> selling anything or asking for money.
- The survey is absolutely confidential and the answers given will not be identified with your children or your household in any way.
- This is a public health survey sponsored by your Los Angeles County Department of Public Health. If you have any questions about the survey, you may contact the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health at (213) 240-7785.
- We are calling to collect information about the health of children to help the Department of Public Health to better serve the needs of all children living in Los Angeles County.

PS1. We can conduct the survey in any of the following languages – English, Spanish, Mandarin or Cantonese, Korean, or Vietnamese. Would you prefer to be interviewed in a language <u>other than</u> English?

YES	1
NO	2

IF YES,	ASK:				
PS2.		D LANGUAGE OR ASK: Which one? ERENT BILINGUAL INTERVIEWER IS REQUIRED, RECORD APPLICABLE CODE)			
	MANDA CANTO CHINES KOREA VIETNA ASIAN U OTHER DON'T I REFUSI	H			
	PS3.	An interviewer (fluent in) will call you back soon to conduct the interview in that language. We greatly appreciate your participation in this important survey when our interviewer calls back.			
	IF PS2 = DON'T KNOW, SAY:				
	PS4.	We can only conduct the interview in English, Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, Korean, and Vietnamese. Is there another adult in your household who speaks English or one of these languages?			
		YES1 \rightarrow ASK TO SPEAK WITH THAT PERSON AND RETURN TO INTRO			
		NO2 \rightarrow TERMINATE			

PS5. RECORD GENDER OF PARENT:

Before we begin, I need to tell you that this call may be monitored by my supervisor to ensure quality and courtesy.

2007 LOS ANGELES COUNTY HEALTH SURVEY – Child Questionnaire –

CHILD IDENTIFICATION AND BACKGROUND

P1a.		any of yo ouseholo	our children are under age 18 and live with you d?		-		
	IF ONLY	ONE CHILD UNDER AGE 18 IN HOUSEHOLD, ASK:					
	P1b.	rest of t	we can refer to your child by name during the he survey, what is his or her first name? seD) What are his or her initials?	NAME/INITIALS OF CHILD:			
	IF MORE	THAN ON	E CHILD UNDER AGE 18 IN HOUSEHOLD, ASK:				
	P2.	question your ho discuss children What is	o this interview short, we will only be asking ns about one of your children under age 18 in usehold. As a way to select which child to , I would like you to tell me which of your a under age 18 has had the most recent birthday. that child's first name? (IF REFUSED) What are er initials?	NAME/INITIALS OF CHILD WITH MOST RECENT BIRTHDAY:			
		IF TWO C	DR MORE CHILDREN HAVE SAME BIRTHDAY, SAY:				
		P3a.	How many children have the same birthday?	REFUSED			
		P3b.	What are the names of each child? (IF REFUSED) What are the initials of each child?	NAME/INITIALS OF CHILD #1: NAME/INITIALS OF CHILD #2:			
			SELECT NAME/INITIALS WHICH COMES FIRST IN ALF	PHABETIC ORDER.			

Most of the questions in this survey will be about the health and health care needs of <u>NAME</u>.

P4a.	What i	s <u>NAME's</u> age? (IF LESS THAN ONE, ENTER "0")	YEARS OLD REFUSED		
	IF REFU	JSED, ASK:			
	P4b.	Can you tell me generally if <u>NAME</u> is age (READ CATEGORIES)?	0-21 3-52 6-113 12-174		
		DO NOT READ \rightarrow	REFUSED		

IF P4a = 0-2 YEARS OR P4b = 0-2 YEARS, ASK:

P5.	What is <u>NAME's</u> age in months?	MONTHS OLD (0-35)		
	-	REFUSED		
And,	NAME is a (male) (female), is that correct?	MALE FEMALE		

P6.

IF RESPONDENT IS FEMALE AND CHILD IS 0-5 YEARS, ASK :

P7.	Are you <u>NAME's</u> biological mother?	YES, BIOLOGICAL MOTHER1
	0	NO, OTHER2
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9

INFANT QUESTIONS

P8.	PONDENT IS BIOLOGICAL MOTHER, ASK: Before you got pregnant with <u>NAME</u> , did you receive inform	ation about any of the following that
го.	might help you prepare for pregnancy? (READ ITEMS IN RAN	
	 () a. multi-vitamin or folic (FAH-LIK) acid supplements () b. healthy weight for pregnancy () c. nutrition 	<u>YES NO DK REF</u> 1289 1289
	() d. the dangers of tobacco smoke exposure	
	() e. taking care of your gums and teeth	
	() f. genetic screening	
P9.	Where did you get information on how to prepare for a healthy pregnancy from a doctor, nurse or other health professional, family or friends, the Internet, or from books or magazines? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	DOCTOR, NURSE, OTHER HEALTH PROFESSIONAL
P10.	Since the birth of <u>NAME</u> did you return to work or begin a	YES1
	new job? (INTERVIEWER: DO NOT COUNT SCHOOL AS A JOB)	NO2
		DON'T KNOW
		REFUSED
	IF YES, ASK:	
	P11. How old was <u>NAME</u> when you first returned to	YEARS
	work or began work? (RECORD ANSWER IN YEARS	MONTHS
	AND MONTHS) (IF LESS THAN 2 YEARS, RECORD ANSWER IN MONTHS)	DON'T KNOW
	ANSWER IN MONTHS)	REFUSED
P12.	The next questions ask about things that may have happe (READ ITEMS IN ORDER)	ned at the hospital where <u>NAME</u> was born.
		NOT BORN
	 Did you be actional your in the boarital 	YES NO DK REF IN HOSP
	a. Did you breastfeed <u>NAME</u> in the hospital	
	(IF "NOT BORN IN HOSPITAL," SKIP TO P13)	
		<u>YES NO DK REF</u>

		<u>1E3 NO</u>		REF
	Did hospital staff support breastfeeding by showing you how to		_	
b	reastfeed or provide information about breastfeeding	1 2.	8	9
c. V	Vas <u>NAME</u> fed only breast milk at the hospital	1 2.	8	. 9
d. E	Did the hospital give you a telephone number to call for help with			
b	preastfeeding	1 2.	8	9

	P13.	Have y	ou ever breast-fed <u>NAME</u> ?	YES, HAVE BREAST-FED
	ı⊧ P12a P14.	a or P12	c = yes <u>or</u> P13 = yes, ask:	
		Are yo	u currently breast-feeding <u>NAME</u> ?	YES
		IF NO, A	ASK:	
		P15.	How old was <u>NAME</u> when you completely stopped breastfeeding (him/her)? (RECORD ANSWER IN MONTHS)	MONTHS DON'T KNOW
			IF < 6 MONTHS, ASK:	
			P16. Which of the following were reaso (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)? V	
			 () b. Breast milk alone did nor () c. You thought <u>NAME</u> was no () d. You felt you didn't have 	<u>YES NO DK REF</u> ng1289 t satisfy <u>NAME</u> 11289 ot gaining enough weight 1289 enough milk
			() f. Your nipples were sore,() g. You felt it was the right tir	ck and you could not
IF P'			= YES, ASK:	
		P17.	When you went back to work, did your workplace have accommodations for you to breastfeed? This includes giving you a break time and a place to pump milk or breastfeed your baby.	YES
to j	provide i	nformati	year, did any professional visit your home on about parenting <u>NAME</u> , such as a r, or lactation specialist?	YES
<u> </u>	ES, ASK			
P1	ab W we	out how as it mor	time you were receiving these services, often did someone come to your home? e than 2 times per week, 1 to 2 times per 2 times per month, or less than once a	more than 2 times per week1 1 to 2 times per week2 1 to 2 times per month3 -or- less than once a month4 DON'T KNOW
	m	JHUT ?	DO NOT READ	REFUSED

DAILY ACTIVITIES/FAMILY INTERACTION

IF AGE 0-5, ASK:

The ne	ext few questions are about day to day activities that may occur	in your family.
P20.	How many days in a typical week do you or other family members <u>read</u> to <u>NAME</u> – every day, 3 to 6 days, 1 to 2 days or never?	EVERY DAY
P21.	How many days in a typical week do you or other family members <u>tell stories</u> to <u>NAME</u> – every day, 3 to 6 days, 1 to 2 days or never?	EVERY DAY
P22.	How many days in a typical week do you or other family members <u>play music or sing</u> songs with <u>NAME</u> – every day, 3 to 6 days, 1 to 2 days or never?	EVERY DAY
P23.	How many days in a typical week does <u>NAME</u> eat breakfast – every day, 3 to 6 days, 1 to 2 days or never?	EVERY DAY 1 3-6 DAYS 2 1-2 DAYS 3 NEVER 4 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9
FAST	FOOD (NEW ITEM)	
P24.	How often does <u>NAME</u> eat any food including meals and snacks from a fast food restaurant, like McDonald's, Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken, or another similar type place–	4+ TIMES PER WEEK1 1-3 TIMES PER WEEK2 LESS THAN ONCE A WEEK

- snacks from a fast food restaurant, like McDonald's, Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken, or another similar type place– 4 or more times per week, 1-3 times per week, less than once a week but more than once a month, or less than once a month?
- P25. On an average day, about how many sodas or sweetened drinks such as Gatorade, Red Bull or Sunny Delight does <u>NAME</u> drink? (Do not include diet sodas or sugar-free drinks. Please count a 12-ounce can, bottle or glass as one drink.)
- P26. On an average day, how many hours does <u>NAME</u> watch television (IF AGE 6-17: or play video games)? Only include time when (he/she) is sitting and watching TV (IF AGE 6-17: or playing video games).

2
,
5
)

_ NUMBER PER DAY

RARELY/NEVER	97
DON'T KNOW	98
REFUSED	99

HOURS

77
98
99

IF AGE 6-17 YEARS, ASK:

P2 ⁻	using a computer for personal e-mail, searching the Internet	MINUTES HOURS	
	or playing games? Do not include time spent using a	NEVER	00
	computer at school.	DON'T KNOW	98
	•	REFUSED	99

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

IF AGE 6-17, ASK:

P28. Think about the <u>last 7 days</u>. On how many days did <u>NAME</u> do any of the following, not including school physical education classes? (READ ITEM) – never, 1 day, 2 days, 3 days, 4 days, 5 days, 6 days, or 7 days? (READ IN ORDER)

FOR EACH ANSWERED 1 OR MORE DAYS, ASK IMMEDIATELY:

P29. On the days that <u>NAME</u> did this, about how much time did <u>NAME</u> spend doing this? (IF NECESSARY: Just your best estimate.)

				P28		F	29	
				DON'T			DON'T	
				KNOW	REF	MINUTES HOU	JRS KNOW	REF
	а.	Walk, bike or skateboard to school		8	9	···		99
	b.	Play or practice a team sport such as volleyball, football, basketball, hockey, soccer or swim team		8	9	···	98	99
	C.	Participate in activities such as bicycling, rollerblading or skateboarding		8	9	···		99
	d.	Do other activities like physically interactive games such as Sony Eye Toy or Dance Dance Revolution (DDR)		8	9		98	99
	e.	Go to classes to do gymnastics, dance, karate or		_	-			
	0.	other similar activities			9		98	.99
				-				
P30.	Ho	w would you rate your community as a place for <u>NAME</u>	to	VERY F	LEASA	NT		1
	be physically active – very pleasant, somewhat pleasant,			SOMEV	VHAT F	LEASANT		2
		newhat unpleasant, or very unpleasant?		SOMEV	VHAT L	INPLEASANT		3
				VERY L	INPLEA	ASANT		4
				DON'T	KNOW			8
				REFUS	ED			9
P31.	le f	here a park, playground or other safe place for <u>NAME</u> to		VEC				1
1 51.		y that you can get to easily?	,					
	pia	y that you can get to easily :						
				1121 00				
	IF Y	'ES TO P31 , ASK:						
	P3	2. How many days in the past 2 weeks did <u>NAME</u> us	e		DA	YS		1
		the park, playground, or other safe place?		DON'T I	KNOW			8
				REFUS	ED			9

IF AGE 0-5, ASK:

P33.	Thinking about the past month, how much of the time have you felt (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER) – all of the time, most of the time, some of the time, or none of the time?) —
	 () a. that <u>NAME</u> was much harder to care for than most of () b. that <u>NAME</u> does things that really bother you a lot () c. that you were giving up too much of your life to meen needs 	1 et <u>NAME'S</u>	2	3 3	4 4	8 8	9
	() d. angry with <u>NAME</u>	1	2	3	4	8	9
P34.	In general, how would you describe <u>NAME's</u> health – excellent, very good, good, fair or poor?	EXCELLE VERY GO GOOD FAIR	OD				2 3
		POOR DON'T KN					-

HEALTH CONDITIONS

The next few questions are about any health conditions <u>NAME</u> may have. . .

P35. Have <u>you</u> ever been told by a doctor or other health professional that <u>NAME</u> has... (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)?

	<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
() a. attention deficit disorder (ADD) or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD)	1 289
() b. autism	1 289
() c. diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES)	1 289
() d. asthma	1 289

REFUSED......9

IF YES TO ATTENTION DEFICIT DISORDER, IMMEDIATELY ASK:

P36.	for ADD or ADHD?	YES	
		DON'T KNOW REFUSED	8
P37.	Is <u>NAME</u> currently receiving individual or group therapy for ADD or ADHD?	YES	
		DON'T KNOW REFUSED	8

IF YES TO AUTISM, IMMEDIATELY ASK:

P38.	Is NAME currently receiving individual or group therapy for	YES1
	autism?	NO2
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9

IF YES TO DIABETES, IMMEDIATELY ASK:

P39.	How old was NAME when (he/she) was diagnosed with	YEARS	
	diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES)?	DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	

P40.	Does <u>NAME</u> have Type 1 Diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES) or Type 2 Diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES)?	TYPE I DIABETES1TYPE 2 DIABETES2DON'T KNOW8REFUSED9
P41.	Is <u>NAME</u> now taking any medication for his or her diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES) such as insulin or diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES) pills? (IF YES, ASK:) Which one – insulin, pills, or both?	YES, TAKING INSULIN
P42.	Have any of <u>NAME'S</u> immediate family members such as brothers, sisters, parents or grandparents, been diagnosed with diabetes (DIE-AH-BE-TEES)?	YES1 NO2 DON'T KNOW8 REFUSED9
P43.	Does <u>NAME</u> still have asthma?	YES1 NO2

		REFUSED	9
P44.	During the past 12 months, has <u>NAME</u> had an episode of asthma or an asthma attack?	YES	-
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	9

IF YES TO EITHER P43 OR P44, ASK:

P45.	During the past 12 months, how many days of	NUMBER OF DAY	′S
	daycare or school did <u>NAME</u> miss due to asthma?	NOT APPLICABLE (CHILD NOT IN	
	Just your best estimate.	DAYCARE OR SCHOOL)	997
		DON'T KNOW	998
		REFUSED	999
P46.	How often does <u>NAME'S</u> asthma limit (his/her)	ALWAYS	1
	physical activity – always, most of the time,	MOST OF THE TIME	2
	sometimes, rarely, or never?	SOMETIMES	3
	-	RARELY	4
		NEVER	5
		DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9
P47.	Does NAME take prescription medicines (including	YES	1
	inhalers) to control (his/her) asthma?	NO	
	, , , ,	DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	
P48.	How many times during the past 12 months did	TIMES	
	NAME visit an emergency room or urgent care center	DON'T KNOW	8
	because of asthma?	REFUSED	

IF AGE	6-17 YEARS, ASK:		
P49.	Do you (IF CHILD 10-17 YEARS: or <u>NAME</u>) ever	YES	
	check his/her peak flow level at home?	NO	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	

IF P35d NOT YES, ASK:

P50.	During the last 2 years has <u>NAME</u> had repeated episodes where he/she had (READ ITEM)?		
	a. Trouble breathingb. Chest tightness		
P51.	Does your child have episodes of cough, chest tightness, trouble breathing, or wheezing when playing or exercising?	YES	
P52.	In the past 4 weeks, has your child had episodes of cough, chest tightness, trouble breathing, or wheezing in the morning or during the daytime?	YES	

HPV

IF DIFFERENT RESPONDENT THAN PERSON WHO COMPLETED MAIN SURVEY ASK:

Human papilloma (PAP-ILL-OH-MAH) virus (VY-RUS), also called HPV, is a common sexually transmitted infection known to cause cervical cancer in women. A vaccine to prevent HPV infection is available for girls starting at age 9 and is called the cervical cancer vaccine, HPV shot or Gardasil (GARD-AH-SIL).

P53.		e today, had you ever heard of a vaccine to prevent and cervical cancer?	YES
	IF YES, P54.	ASK: Where did you hear about the HPV vaccine – from TV or radio, the Internet, in newspapers or magazines, from a doctor or health care provider, from family, friends or co-workers, or from another source? (ALLOW MULTIPLE RESPONSES)	TV/RADIO 1 INTERNET 2 NEWSPAPERS/MAGAZINES 3 DOCTOR/HEALTH CARE PROVIDER 4 FAMILY/FRIENDS/CO-WORKERS 5 OTHER 6 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9

P55.	Has NAME received any HPV shots?	YES	1
	,	NO	2
		DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	ç

P56.	How likely is it that you will have <u>NAME</u> vaccinated against HPV – very likely, somewhat likely, not too likely or not at all likely?	VERY LIKELY	
	IF NOT TOO LIKELY, NOT AT ALL LIKELY, DK OR	REFUSED, ASK:	
	P57. Which of the following are reasons why you are not likely to vaccina		
	daughter – (READ IN RANDOM ORDE	R)?	
		<u>YES</u> <u>NO</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>	
	() a. <u>NAME</u> 's doctor has not recor	nmended the vaccine 1 289	
	 () b. you are concerned about the vaccine's side effects 1 28. () c. you are concerned that the vaccine will encourage NAME to have sex		
	() d. the vaccine costs too much	h or your insurance doesn't	
	() e. the vaccine is not required		

CHILD CARE

IF AGE 0-5, ASK:

Next, some questions about childcare. By childcare, we mean any kind of arrangement where someone other than you or <u>NAME</u>'s other parent takes care of <u>NAME</u> on a regular basis. Please include care provided by a relative or non-relative, either in your home or someone else's home, as well as in a child care center. Do <u>not</u> include occasional babysitting.

P58.	How many hours is <u>NAME</u> currently in any kind of childcare		HOURS PER WEEK
	during a typical week? Just your best estimate. (IF NECESSARY:)	DON'T KNOW	8
	Do not include kindergarten or care provided by you or NAME's	REFUSED	9
	other parent.		

IF **0** HOURS PER WEEK, ASK:

	Shor En WEEK, AGK.				
P59.	Which of the following is a reason why you do not use any childcare for <u>NAME</u> in a typical week (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) Is this a reason?				
		<u>YES NO DK REF</u>			
	() a. You or <u>NAME</u> 's other parent work at home	1 289			
	() b. You or NAME's other parent work different hours in order to care for				
	NAME yourselves	1 289			
	() c. You or <u>NAME</u> 's other parent are not working	1 289			
	() d. You prefer to stay at home with <u>NAME</u>				
	() e. Child care costs too much	1 289			
	() f. The child care you want is full or not available				
	() g. Transportation is a problem	1 289			
	() h. Your child has a disability or other special needs	1 289			
	() i. The program is offered only part of the day	1 289			

IF >0 HOURS PER WEEK, ASK:

IF >0 H	OURS PEF	DURS PER WEEK, ASK:				
P60.	ASKING	of the following types of childcare do you use fo :) Do you use this type of childcare for <u>NAME</u> on b know where, but are just interested in the type	a regular basis? (IF NECESSARY: We don't			
			<u>YES NO DK REF</u>			
		ead Start (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) Head Start is a fe ildcare program				
		State Preschool program (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) S				
		childcare center, preschool or nursery school (o ate pre-school program)				
		preone cares for NAME in their home				
		pmeone cares for <u>NAME</u> in <u>your</u> home				
		-				
	IF YES 1	TO "SOMEONE WHO CARES FOR <u>NAME</u> IN THEIR HOM	IE," IMMEDIATELY ASK:			
	P61.	Is this person a licensed family or home day	YES1			
		care provider?	NO			
			DON'T KNOW8 REFUSED9			
	P62.	Is this person a <u>relative</u> , such as a brother,	RELATIVE1			
		sister or grandparent, or a <u>non-relative</u> , such	NON-RELATIVE			
		as a friend, neighbor, nanny or au pair?	DON'T KNOW			
		TO "SOMEONE WHO CARES FOR <u>NAME</u> IN YOUR HOM				
	P63.	Is this person a <u>relative</u> , such as a brother,	RELATIVE1			
		sister or grandparent, or a non-relative,	NON-RELATIVE2			
		such as a friend, neighbor, nanny or au	DON'T KNOW8			
		pair?	REFUSED9			
	IF MULT	IPLE YES ANSWERS IN P60, ASK:				
	P64.	You mentioned that you currently use the	Head Start1			
		following types of childcare for <u>NAME</u>	a State Preschool program2			
		(READ BACK CATEGORIES ANSWERED "YES"	a child care center, preschool or			
		FROM P70). Which of these do you use most	nursery school			
		for <u>NAME</u> ?	someone cares for <u>NAME</u> in <u>their</u> home4			
			someone cares for <u>NAME</u> in <u>your</u> home5			
		ſ	 NONE USED MOST			
		DO NOT READ	BEFUSED			
Overa	ll, how ea	asy or difficult is it for you to get childcare for	VERY EASY1			
NAME C	on a regu	Ilar basis when you need it – very easy,	SOMEWHAT EASY2			
		y, somewhat difficult, or very difficult?	SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT			
	-	· ·	VERY DIFFICULT4			
			DOES NOT NEED CHILDCARE			
			DON'T KNOW8			
			REFUSED9			

IF VERY OR SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT, ASK:

P66.	66. Which of the following are reasons why it is difficult <u>to find or keep</u> childcare for regular basis (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER, ASKING:) Is this a reason?			
		<u>YES NO DK R</u>		
	() a. Child care costs too much			
	() b. It is difficult to find a provider with space available			
	() c. The hours and location don't fit your needs	1 28		
	() d. The quality of the childcare is not satisfactory			
	() e. The providers are unreliable (for example, they quit without notice	or		
	are late)			
	() f. NAME has a disability or other special needs			

IF AGE 0-5, ASK:

P67.	Have you ever heard of the organization Los Angeles Universal Preschool?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2
P68.	Have you ever heard of the organization First 5 LA?	YES NO DON'T KNOW	2

REFUSED......9

IF YES, ASK:

P69.	From which of the following sources have you heard something about First 5 L-A: TV or radio, newspaper, your doctor, a social worker or other health professional, family or friends, bus signs, pamphlets or flyers, school or community organizations, or some other place? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	TV,
P70.	 Which of the following things do you associate with Fir Do you associate this with First 5 LA? () a. Children's Health Insurance	<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
	 ()b. Preschool ()c. Telephone help line ()d. Sporting goods ()e. Children's clothing ()f. Eating fruits and vegetables 	
P71.	Have you ever heard of a telephone information line for parents called the First 5 LA Parent Helpline?	YES

P72.	From which of the following sources have	TV,
	you heard something about First 5 LA	Radio,
	Parent Helpline (READ CATEGORIES)?	newspaper,
	(ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	your doctor, a social worker or other health professional,
		family or friends,
		Bus signs,
		Pamphlets or flyers,
		school or community organizations,
		-or - some other place
	(DON'T KNOW
	DO NOT READ {	REFUSED
P73.	Have you yourself ever called First 5 LA	YES
	Parent Helpline?	NO
		DON'T KNOW
		REFUSED

PANDEMIC FLU

IF P60a1, a2 OR b = YES <u>OR</u> AGE 6-17, ASK:

Every 50 years or so, a more deadly form of the seasonal flu, known as <u>pandemic flu</u>, can occur – and sicken and kill many people. Imagine that pandemic flu arrived in your community. In order to keep it from spreading and to protect the safety of children, schools and daycare facilities may be closed for some period of time.

P76.	If schools and daycare facilities were closed for <u>7-10 days</u> , how difficult would it be for you to care or arrange for care for <u>NAME</u> – very difficult, somewhat difficult, not too difficult, or not at all difficult?	VERY DIFFICULT
P77.	If schools and daycare facilities were closed for <u>one month</u> , how difficult would it be for you to care or arrange for care for <u>NAME</u> – very difficult, somewhat difficult, not too difficult, or not at all difficult?	VERY DIFFICULT

HEALTH INSURANCE

P78. Is <u>NAME</u> covered by health insurance or any other kind of health care plan? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) This includes health insurance obtained through an employer, purchased directly, HMOs or pre-paid plans like Kaiser, government programs such as Medi-Cal, Medicaid, Healthy Families or Healthy Kids, military programs such as Champus, Champ VA, or the Indian Health Service.

YES	1
NO	2
DON'T KNOW	8
REFUSED	9

IF YES, DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK:

P79.		NAME currently covered for health insurance (REA ISWER FOR EACH)?	D ITEMS ONE AT A TIME AND RECORD
		SWERT OR EACH):	<u>YES</u> <u>NO</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
	a.	through your own or some other family member's <u>e</u> association, school or business	
	b.	under <u>Medi-Cal</u> or <u>Medicaid</u> (IF NECESSARY, SAY: the insurance program for certain low-income children a pregnant women, and certain persons who are disa	and their families,
	C.	under <u>Healthy Families</u> , a state program that pays for some children up to age 19	
	d.	under <u>Healthy Kids</u> , the new insurance program in children who are not eligible for Medi-Cal, Medicai	
	e.	under your own or some other family member's mil	itary insurance program 1 289
	IF a	a-e≠YES, ASK:	
	f.	through a <u>separate policy</u> that you or some other f directly from an insurance provider	
	IFN	NOT YES TO P79a-f , ASK:	
	g.	What is the type or name of <u>NAME</u> 's insurance?	(SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW

IF NO, ASK:

11 100,7	
P80.	There are some types of coverage you may not have considered. Is <u>NAME</u> currently covered for health insurance (READ ITEMS ONE AT A TIME AND RECORD ANSWER FOR EACH)?
	<u>YES</u> <u>NO</u> <u>DK</u> <u>REF</u>
	 a. through your own or some other family member's employer, union, trade
	association, school or business9
	b. under <u>Medi-Cal</u> or <u>Medicaid</u> (the government's health insurance program
	for certain low-income children and their families, pregnant women, and
	certain persons who are disabled or who are seniors)
	c. under <u>Healthy Families</u>, a state program that pays for health insurance for
	some children up to age 19
	 under <u>Healthy Kids</u>, the new insurance program in Los Angeles County for
	children who are not eligible for Medi-Cal, Medicaid or Healthy Families 1 289
	e. under your own or some other family member's military insurance
	program (like Champus or VA coverage)9
	IF a-e ≠ YES, ASK:
	f. through a separate policy that you or some other family member bought
	directly from an insurance provider

(IF ANY P79a-e = YES OR P79f NOT DK OR REF) OR (IF ANY P80a-f = YES), ASK:

P81.	During the past 12 months, has <u>NAME</u> had any periods when (he/she) had no health insurance, and	YES1
	was not covered under anyone else's plan or government program like Medi-Cal or Healthy Families?	DON'T KNOW

IF P79b OR P80b = YES, ASK:

	edi-Cal or Medicaid comprehensive just for emergency services?	COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY SERVICES DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2
--	-------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------	---

IF NO, I	DK OR REI	F TO ALL INSURANCE QUESTIONS IN P79 AND P80,	ASK:
P83.	Before	today, had you ever heard of (READ ITEMS IN RA	ANDOM ORDER)?
			<u>YES NO DK REF</u>
	• •	Medi-Cal or Medicaid	
	()b.	Healthy Families	
	() C.	Healthy Kids	
	IF P83a	a, b or c = yes, ask:	
	P84.	Based on what you know about (IF P83a = YES: Medi-Cal or Medicaid) (or) (IF P83b = YES: Healthy Families) (or) (IF P83c = YES: Healthy Kids), do you think that <u>NAME</u> is eligible now?	YES
	P85.	If you were told that <u>NAME</u> was eligible for (IF P83a = YES: Medi-Cal or Medicaid) (or) (IF P83b = YES: Healthy Families) (or) (IF P83c = YES: Healthy Kids), would you want to enroll (him/her)?	YES

BARRIERS TO ACCESSING HEALTH CARE

P86.	Overall, how easy or difficult is it for NAME to get medical care	VERY DIFFICULT1
	when (he/she) needs it? Would you say it is very difficult,	SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT
	somewhat difficult, somewhat easy, or very easy?	SOMEWHAT EASY
		VERY EASY4
		DON'T KNOW8

REFUSED......9

IF VERY OR SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT, ASK:

P87.	(READ	nportant are each of the following reasons wh ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER) Is this a very important why getting medical care for <u>NAME</u> is difficult?	nt, somewl				
			VERY	SOMEWHAT	NOT	DON'T	
			IMPORTANT	IMPORTANT	IMPORTANT	KNOW	REF
	()a.	You cannot afford to pay	1	2	3	8	9
		The clinic, office or doctor's hours do not fit with your schedule					
	() C.	You have difficulty getting an appointment or have to wait too long		2	3	8	9
	IF NOT	YES TO ANY ITEMS IN P79 OR P80, ASK:					
	() d.	NAME has no health insurance	1	2	3	8	9
	()e.	You do not know where to go or who to call to get NAME health care	1	2	3	8	9
	() f.	You're afraid that it might affect your family's immigration status	1	2	3	8	9

VES NO DE EEEE () a. to see a doctor for a physical exam or well (IF AGE 0-2: baby) 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () b. to see a doctor when NAME had an illness or other health problem 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () b. trace 0-17: dental care, including check-ups 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () d. IF AGE 0-17: dental care, including check-ups 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () e. IF AGE 0-17: dental care, including check-ups 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () e. IF AGE 0-17: dental care including check-ups 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () e. IF AGE 0-17: dental care including check-ups 1. 2. 8. 9 1. 2. 8. 9 () e. IF AGE 0-17: dental care or counseling LESS THAN 6 MONTHS AGO. 2 1 () e. ray ago, 1 year up to 2 years ago, 2 years up to 5 years ago, 0 rear up to 2 years ago, 2 years ago, 2 years ago, 2 years up to 5 years ago 1 2. 8. 9 P90. Do you now have any type of insurance that pays for part or all of (MAUE)'s dental care? (IF NEDED) Your insurance may be dental insurance, prepaid dental pans such as HMOS, or DON'T KNOW 8 P90. Do you now have any type of insurance that pays for part or all of (MAUE)'s dental care? (IF NEDED)'Your insurance may break part was there ever a time when transportation problems kept you from getting needed medical care for MAUE? NO P91. During the past y	P88.	In the past year, was there ever a time when <u>NAME</u> needed (ITE not afford it? (READ ITEMS IN RANDOM ORDER)	m) but didn't get it because you could
or dental clinic – never, less than 6 months ago, 6 months up to 1 year ago, 1 year up to 2 years ago, 2 years up to 5 years ago, or 5 or more years ago? Include dental hygienists and all types of dental specialists. 6 MOS. UP TO 1 YEAR AGO		 (IF AGE 3-17: child) check-up () b. to see a doctor when <u>NAME</u> had an illness or other health () c. prescription medicines () d. IF AGE 0-17: dental care, including check-ups 	baby)
all of (<u>NAME</u>)'s dental care? (IF NEEDED:) Your insurance may be dental insurance, prepaid dental plans such as HIMOs, or government programs such as Medi-Cal or Healthy Families. Do not include free programs. NO	P89.	or dental clinic – never, less than 6 months ago, 6 months up to 1 year ago, 1 year up to 2 years ago, 2 years up to 5 years ago, or 5 or more years ago? Include dental hygienists and	6 MOS. UP TO 1 YEAR AGO
transportation problems kept you from getting needed medical care for NAME? NO 2 IF NON-ENGLISH LANGUAGE INTERVIEW, ASK: P92. During the past year, was there ever a time when you had trouble talking to a doctor or health care provider about NAME because he or she did not speak your language? YES 1 P93. When NAME is sick or you want advice about (his/her) health, is there one particular place or health provider that you take (him) (her) to most often? YES 1 P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take NAME or is it because you have no regular place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE. 1 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF. ASK: MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF. ASK: YES 1 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF. ASK: YES 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 1 NO 2 DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK: P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE. 1 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME more often than any other place? YES 1 NO 20 DON'T KNOW 8 2 2 NO 22	P90.	all of (<u>NAME</u>)'s dental care? (IF NEEDED:) Your insurance may be dental insurance, prepaid dental plans such as HMOs, or government programs such as Medi-Cal or Healthy Families.	NO
P92. During the past year, was there ever a time when you had trouble talking to a doctor or health care provider about NAME because he or she did not speak your language? YES 1 NO DON'T KNOW 8 P93. When NAME is sick or you want advice about (his/her) health, is there one particular place or health provider that you take (him) (her) to most often? YES 1 P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO. 2 DON'T KNOW 000'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF NO, DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK: P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE 1 NO PLACE TO GO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME YES YES 1 NO MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. 1 NO NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 2 DON'T KNOW 8 2 DON'T KNOW 8 NO 0.00 MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME YES 1 NO <td>P91.</td> <td>transportation problems kept you from getting needed</td> <td>NO</td>	P91.	transportation problems kept you from getting needed	NO
P92. During the past year, was there ever a time when you had trouble talking to a doctor or health care provider about NAME because he or she did not speak your language? YES 1 NO DON'T KNOW 8 P93. When NAME is sick or you want advice about (his/her) health, is there one particular place or health provider that you take (him) (her) to most often? YES 1 P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO. 2 DON'T KNOW 000'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF NO, DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK: P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE 1 NO PLACE TO GO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME YES YES 1 NO MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. 1 NO NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 2 DON'T KNOW 8 2 DON'T KNOW 8 NO 0.00 MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME YES 1 NO <td>IF NON-I</td> <td>ENGLISH LANGUAGE INTERVIEW, ASK:</td> <td></td>	IF NON-I	ENGLISH LANGUAGE INTERVIEW, ASK:	
is there one particular place or health provider that you take (him) (her) to most often? 20N'T KNOW		During the past year, was there ever a time when you had trouble talking to a doctor or health care provider about <u>NAME</u>	NO
P94. Is that because you have more than one place to take <u>NAME</u> or is it because you have no regular place to take (him) (her)? MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO 1 NO PLACE TO GO NO PLACE TO GO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take <u>NAME</u> more often than any other place? YES 1 NO NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8	P93.	is there one particular place or health provider that you take	NO
take NAME or is it because you have no regular place to take (him) (her)? NO PLACE TO GO 2 DON'T KNOW 8 REFUSED 9 IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK: P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME more often than any other place? YES 1 NO NO NO 2 DON'T KNOW 8		IF NO, DON'T KNOW, OR REFUSED, ASK:	
P95. Is there a particular place that you take NAME yes		take <u>NAME</u> or is it because you have no regular place	NO PLACE TO GO
more often than any other place? NO		IF MORE THAN ONE PLACE TO GO, DK OR REF, ASK:	
			NO

PARENTAL SUPPORT

IF AGE 0-5, ASK:	

P96.	How easy or difficult is it to find someone you can talk to when you need advice about how to raise <u>NAME</u> – very easy, somewhat easy, somewhat difficult or very difficult?	VERY EASY SOMEWHAT EASY SOMEWHAT DIFFICULT VERY DIFFICULT DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 3 4 8
P97.	Do you know where to go when you feel you need assistance in helping your young children learn?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2 8

P98. Thinking about yourself... Do you have (READ ITEM)?

		<u>YES</u> NO	DK	REF
()a.	someone to take you to the doctor if you needed it	1 2 .	8	9
()b.	someone to love you and make you feel wanted	1 2 .	8,	9
()c.	someone to have a good time with	1 2 .	8	9
()d.	someone to confide in or talk to about yourself or your problems	1 2 .	8	9

PARENT'S MENTAL HEALTH AND HEALTH RISK BEHAVIORS

P99. Next I am going to read a list of the ways you might feel. For each, please tell me how often you have felt this way during the past month. During the past month, how often did you... (READ ITEM) – rarely, some of the time, often times or most of the time?

			SOME OF	OFTEN	MOST OF	DON'T	
		RARELY	THE TIME	TIMES	THE TIME	KNOW	REF
а.	feel depressed	1	2	3	4	8	9
b.	feel lonely	1	2	3	4	8	9
	have crying spells						
	feel sad						

IF DIFFERENT RESPONDENT THAN PERSON WHO COMPLETED MAIN SURVEY, ASK:

P100.	profess	u currently receiving counseling from a mental health sional, such as a psychiatrist, psychologist, otherapist, social worker or counselor for any reason?	YES
P101.	profess depres	<u>You</u> ever been told by a doctor or other health sional that <u>you</u> have depression or some other sive disorder (IF NECESSARY: such as bipolar disorder lic depression)?	YES
	P102.	Are you currently taking medication prescribed by a doctor or psychiatrist for this disorder?	YES

SMOKING

IF DIFFERENT RESPONDENT THAN PERSON WHO COMPLETED MAIN SURVEY, ASK:

P103.	Have you smoked at least 100 cigarettes in your entire life?	YES1
		NO2
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9
P104.	Do you now smoke cigarettes every day, some days, or not	EVERY DAY1
	at all?	SOME DAYS2
		NOT AT ALL
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9
P105.	Do you currently smoke cigars, a pipe, a hookah or water	NO1
	pipe, or chew smokeless tobacco? (IF YES:) Which ones?	YES, CIGARS2
	(ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE YES)	YES, A PIPE
	, ,	YES, HOOKAH/WATER PIPE4
		YES, SMOKELESS TOBACCO5
		DON'T KNOW8
		REFUSED9

SECOND-HAND SMOKE

P106.	On how many of the past 7 days was <u>NAME</u> exposed to	DAY	S
	cigarette, cigar or pipe smoke in your home?	DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9

P107. Which of the following best describes the rules that apply to smoking inside your home? (READ CATEGORIES)

Smoking is not allowed anywhere or at any time inside your home	1
Smoking is allowed only in some places or at some times	2
Smoking is allowed anywhere or at any time inside your home	3
DON'T KNOW	
REFUSED	9

CHILD DEMOGRAPHICS

The next few questions ask about <u>NAME'S</u> ethnic and racial background ...

P108.	Is <u>NAME</u> Latino or of Hispanic origin (IF NECESSARY: such as Mexican-American, Latin American, Central or South American, or Spanish-American)?	YES NO DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2

IF YES, HISPANIC, ASK:

REFUSED	ME of Mexican ancestry or some other Hispanic stry? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	MEXICAN

	IF OTHER, ASK:		
	P110. Which of the following best describes <u>NAME</u> 's (other) Hispanic ancestry or ethnic origin?	Salvadoran Guatemalan	
	(READ CATEGORIES) (ANSWER CAN BE A	Costa Rican	
	MULTIPLE)	Honduran	
	,	Nicaraguan	5
		Panamanian	6
		South American	7
		Spanish-American	8
		Cuban	
		Puerto Rican	
		Other (SPECIFY)	11
	DO NOT READ	DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	99
P111.	For classification purposes, we'd like to know what NAME's	WHITE	1
	racial background is. Is (he/she) White, Black or African-	BLACK/AFRICAN-AMERICAN	2
	American, Asian, Pacific Islander, American Indian or an	ASIAN	3
	Alaskan native, a member of another race or a combination	PACIFIC ISLANDER	
	of these? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	AMERICAN INDIAN/ALASKAN NATIVE	
		HISPANIC/LATINO (VOLUNTEERED)	
		OTHER (SPECIFY)	
		DON'T KNOW	
		REFUSED	9
	IF ASIAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER, ASK:		
	P112. Which of the following best describes <u>NAME's</u> Asian	Chinese	
	ancestry or ethnic origin? (READ CATEGORIES)	Korean	
	(ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	Filipino	
		Japanese	
		Vietnamese	
		Asian Indian	
		Cambodian	
		Hawaiian	
		Guamanian Samoan	
		Laotian/Hmong (Mong)	
		Other (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW	
	DO NOT READ	REFUSED	
	I = WHITE OR OTHER, ASK:	VEC	4
P113.	Is <u>NAME</u> or are any of <u>NAME'S</u> ancestors from Armenia (AR-ME-	YES	_
	NE-AH)?	NO DON'T KNOW	
			0

P114.	Was <u>NAME</u> born in Los Angeles County, in some other place in California, in some other state in the U.S. or outside the		
	United States?	OTHER U.S. STATE	3
		DON'T KNOW	3
		REFUSED)

REFUSED......9

IF OUTSIDE THE U.S.	, ASK:

P115.	How many years has <u>NAME</u> lived in the U.S.?	YEARS		
		DON'T KNOW	8	
		REFUSED	9	
P116.	Is NAME currently a U.S. citizen or not?	U.S. CITIZEN	1	
		NOT A U.S. CITIZEN	2	
		DON'T KNOW	8	
		REFUSED	9	

PARENT DEMOGRAPHICS

IF DIFFERENT RESPONDENT THAN PERSON WHO COMPLETED MAIN SURVEY, ASK:

117.	What is	s your ag	je?	YEARS			
				REFUSED	99		
	IF REFUSED, ASK:						
	P118.	We do	n't need to know exactly, but generally	18–24	1		
		speaki	eaking are you between ages (READ rEGORIES)?	25–29			
				30–39			
		UAILOC		40–44			
				45–49			
				50–59	6		
				60–64			
				65 or older			
				REFUSED			
			DO NOT READ				
e nez	xt few qu	estions	ask about your ethnic and racial background				
19.	Are vou	u of Latin	no or Hispanic origin? (IF NECESSARY: such as	YES, HISPANIC	1		
-			can, Latin American, Central or South	NO, NON-HISPANIC			
			panish-American)?	DON'T KNOW			
		, e. er		REFUSED			
	IF YES, A						
	P120.		u of Mexican ancestry or some other Hispanic	MEXICAN			
		ancestry? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)		OTHER			
				DON'T KNOW	-		
				REFUSED	9		
		IF OTHE	R, ASK:				
		P121.	Which of the following best describes your	Salvadoran	1		
			(other) Hispanic ancestry or ethnic origin?	Guatemalan	2		
			(READ CATEGORIES) (ANSWER CAN BE A	Costa Rican	3		
			MULTIPLE)	Honduran	4		
			,	Nicaraguan	5		
				Panamanian			
				South American	7		
				Spanish-American			
				Cuban			
				Puerto Rican			
	1			Other (SPECIFY)			
			ſ	DON'T KNOW			
			DO NOT READ	REFUSED			
				REFUSED			

P122.	For classification purposes, we'd like to know what your racial background is. Are you White, Black or African- American, Asian, Pacific Islander, American Indian or an Alaskan native, a member of another race or a combination of these? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	WHITE BLACK/AFRICAN-AMERICAN ASIAN PACIFIC ISLANDER AMERICAN INDIAN/ALASKAN NATIVE HISPANIC/LATINO (VOLUNTEERED) OTHER (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW REFUSED	2
	IF ASIAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER, ASK:		
	P123. Which of the following best describes your Asian ancestry or ethnic origin? (READ CATEGORIES) (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE) DO NOT READ	Chinese Korean Filipino Japanese Vietnamese Asian Indian Cambodian Hawaiian Guamanian Samoan Laotian/Hmong Other (SPECIFY) [DON'T KNOW REFUSED	
P124.	What languages are spoken in your home? (ANSWER CAN BE A MULTIPLE)	ENGLISH	

r	P125.	Which language is spoken most often?	ENGLISH	
	125.	Which anguage is spoken most often?	SPANISH	
			CANTONESE	
			CHINESE (UNSPECIFIED)	
			KOREAN	
			VIETNAMESE	
			TAGOLOG	
			ARMENIAN	
			RUSSIAN	····· '
			JAPANESE	····· ·
			HMONG	····· ·
			OTHER (SPECIFY)	
			DON'T KNOW	
			REFUSED	
		ou born in California, in some other state in the U.S. or	CALIFORNIA	
C	outside	the United States?	OTHER U.S. STATE	
			OUTSIDE THE U.S.	
			DON'T KNOW	
			REFUSED	
I	F OUTS	IDE THE U.S., ASK:		
	P127.	,	COUNTRY CODE	
· .			OTHER (SPECIFY)	
			DON'T KNOW	
			REFUSED	
F	P128.	How many years have you lived in the United States?	YEARS	
-		(IF LESS THAN ONE YEAR, ENTER "0")	 DON'T KNOW	
			REFUSED	
F	P129.	Are you currently a U.S. citizen or not?	U.S. CITIZEN	
	120.		NOT A U.S. CITIZEN	
			DON'T KNOW	
			REFUSED	
0. \	Nhat is	the highest level of school you have completed or the		
		the highest level of school you have completed or the degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	8TH GRADE OR LESS GRADES 9-12	
ł	highest		8TH GRADE OR LESS GRADES 9-12 HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:)	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	
ł	highest What w	degree you have received? (IF HIGH SCHOOL, ASK:) /as the highest grade you completed?	REFUSED	

	IF MALE,	F MALE, ASK:						
	P132.	For classification purposes, do you think of yourself as homosexual or gay (that is, sexually attracted only to men), heterosexual or straight (that is, sexually attracted only to women), bisexual (that is, sexually attracted to men and women), unsure (that is, uncertain or questioning), or something else?	HOMOSEXUAL/GAY 1 HETEROSEXUAL/STRAIGHT 2 BISEXUAL 3 SOMETHING ELSE 4 UNSURE/QUESTIONING 8 REFUSED 9					
	IF FEMA	F FEMALE, ASK:						
	P133.	For classification purposes, do you think of yourself as homosexual, gay or lesbian (that is, sexually attracted only to women), heterosexual or straight (that is, sexually attracted only to men), bisexual (that is, sexually attracted to women and men), unsure (that is, uncertain or questioning), or something else?	HOMOSEXUAL/GAY/LESBIAN. 1 HETEROSEXUAL/STRAIGHT 2 BISEXUAL 3 SOMETHING ELSE 4 UNSURE/QUESTIONING 8 REFUSED 9					
P134.		i currently working for pay full-time (at least 35 hours a part-time, or not at all?	FULL-TIME					

EMPLOYMENT OF OTHER PARENT

Thinking about the employment situation of your (spouse) (partner)...

IF DIFFERENT RESPONDENT AND MARRIED OR LIVING TOGETHER FROM P131, OR IF SAME RESPONDENT AND MARRIED, DOMESTIC PARTNERS OR LIVING TOGETHER FROM Q161, ASK:

P135.	Is your (spouse) (partner) currently working for pay full-time	FULL-TIME	1
	(at least 35 hours a week), part-time, or not at all?	PART-TIME	2
		NOT AT ALL	3
		DON'T KNOW	8
		REFUSED	9

OTHER HOUSEHOLD INFORMATION

IF HOUSEHOLD NOT INTERVIEWED AS PART OF ADULT SAMPLE, ASK:

P136.	Includir househ	ng yourself, how many people currently live in your nold?	
	IF MORE	E THAN ONE PERSON LIVING IN HOUSEHOLD, ASK:	
	P137.	(Including yourself,) how many are adults age 65 or older?	
	P138.	(Including yourself,) how many are adults between the ages of 18 and 64?	
	P139.	How many children under age 18 currently live in your household?	

		IF >0, AS	SK:	
		P140.	How many are teens between the ages of 12 and 17?	
		P141.	How many are children between the ages of 6 and 11?	
		P142.	How many are children between the ages of 0 and 5?	
P143.	have m		hones and fax lines, does your household one telephone number that I could have you?	YES
P144.	househo or longe	old was v er? By thi	years, was there ever a time when your without basic telephone service for one month s we mean you had no working phone lines home. Please do <u>not</u> include cell phones.	YES
	IF YES, A	ASK:		
	P145.		this period, did you or did anyone else in your old have a cell phone?	YES
P146.	In what	city or to	own do you live? (SEE CODES)	CITY CODE OTHER (SPECIFY) DON'T KNOW DK REFUSED REF
P147.	What is with "9'		rrent zip code? (ALL ZIP CODES MUST BEGIN	ZIP CODE DK DON'T KNOW DK REFUSED REF
Q148.	areas o	f the Cou	I in grouping respondents into geographic unty. What is your address there? AY: It will not be shared with anyone.)	STREET ADDRESS: CITY: ZIP CODE: ZIP CODE: REF
	IF REFUS	SES TO PF	ROVIDE EXACT ADDRESS, ASK:	
	Q149.	Then ca the close PARALLE STREET "AVENUE ENTRY,	an you give me the street that you live on and sest street that crosses it? (DO NOT ENTER EL STREETS) (INTERVIEWER: ENTER COMPLETE <u>NAME</u> , INCLUDING "ROAD," "BOULEVARD," E," "STREET," ETC. FOLLOWING <u>NAME</u>) (AFTER CONFIRM BY SAYING:) And these two streets ss-streets; that is, they cross each other? Is	STREET #1: STREET #2: REFUSED REF

P150a.	tell me i before t \$20,000 and \$40 \$50,000	I't need to know exactly, but just roughly could you f your annual household income from all sources axes is less than \$10,000, between \$10,000 and b, between \$20,000 and \$30,000, between \$30,000 b,000, between \$40,000 and \$50,000, between b and \$75,000, between \$75,000 and \$100,000, m \$100,000 and \$150,000, or more than \$150,000?	LESS THAN \$10,000 \$10,000 - \$20,000 \$20,000 - \$30,000 \$30,000 - \$40,000 \$40,000 - \$50,000 \$50,000 - \$75,000 \$75,000 - \$100,000 100,000 - \$150,000 MORE THAN \$150,000 DON'T KNOW REFUSED				
	IF APPLIC	CABLE, ASK:					
	P150b.	Was your total annual household income before taxes less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRE-SHOLD FOR 200% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	LESS THAN 200% FPL MORE THAN 200% FPL DON'T KNOW REFUSED	. 2 . 8			
		CABLE, ASK:					
		Was your total annual household income before taxes less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRESHOLD FOR 100% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	LESS THAN 100% FPL MORE THAN 100% FPL DON'T KNOW REFUSED	. 2 . 8			
	IF APPLICABLE OR IF P150a = " DON'T KNOW" OR "REFUSED," ASK:						
		(Was) (Can you tell me whether) your total annual household income before taxes (was) less than or more than \$? (READ INCOME THRESHOLD FOR 300% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL APPLICABLE TO HOUSEHOLD SIZE)	LESS THAN 300% FPL MORE THAN 300% FPL DON'T KNOW REFUSED	. 2 . 8			
P151.		y be conducting a follow-up survey in the coming	YES	. 1			

 P151. We may be conducting a follow-up survey in the coming year or so. Would it be alright if we called your household back at that time? (IF NECESSARY, SAY:) All answers are completely confidential.
 YES......

 NO.......
 DON'T KN

 REFUSED
 REFUSED

END

These are all the questions I have. Thank you very much for participating in this important survey.



JONATHAN E. FIELDING, M.D., M.P.H. Director and Health Officer

JOHN F. SCHUNHOFF, Ph.D. Chief Deputy Director

313 North Figueroa Street, Room 806 Los Angeles, California 90012 TEL (213) 240-8117 • FAX (213) 975-1273

www.lapublichealth.org

Estimado residente actual:

Su núcleo familiar ha sido seleccionado al azar para participar en la Encuesta de Salud del Condado de Los Ángeles. El Departamento de Salud Pública del Condado de Los Ángeles realizará esta encuesta, como lo hacemos cada dos años, para saber más sobre la salud de los residentes del condado. Los resultados de la encuesta son muy valiosos para nuestra tarea de promover y proteger la salud de aquéllos que viven en el Condado de Los Ángeles.

Dentro de unas semanas, un entrevistador(a) le llamará por teléfono a su casa en nuestro nombre, y seleccionará un adulto para participar en la encuesta. Esperamos que cuando el entrevistador(a) llame, el adulto seleccionado tome el tiempo necesario para participar en la encuesta. Si llamamos en un momento que no le resulta conveniente, con mucho gusto llamaremos más tarde.

No vendemos nada ni pedimos dinero. Le aseguramos que todas sus respuestas a la encuesta serán absolutamente confidenciales y de ninguna manera se identificarán con su casa. Además le comunicamos que el hecho de que su número de teléfono esté registrado en la lista de "No llamar" ("Do Not Call") no le excluye de esta encuesta, ya que somos una agencia del gobierno encargada de proteger su salud.

Su núcleo familiar es muy especial porque fue seleccionado al azar y es parte de un muestreo científico que representa todos los núcleos familiares del Condado de Los Ángeles. Su participación es voluntaria y es importante que cada familia seleccionada participe para que la encuesta represente de manera exacta todas las diferentes clases de personas que viven en el condado.

Si tiene alguna pregunta, puede llamar al Departamento de Salud Pública del Condado de Los Ángeles, Oficina de Evaluación de la Salud y Epidemiología (Office of Health Assessment and Epidemiology), al (213) 240-7785, o visite nuestro website: <u>www.lapublichealth.org/ha</u>.

Muchas gracias por su cooperación.

Atentamente,

Jma man & Fielding m

Jonathan E. Fielding, M.D., M.P.H. Director y Oficial de Salud



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Gloria Molina First District Yvonne B. Burke Second District Zev Yaroslavsky Third District Don Knabe Fourth District Michael D. Antonovich Fifth District



JONATHAN E. FIELDING, M.D., M.P.H. Director and Health Officer

JOHN F. SCHUNHOFF, Ph.D. Chief Deputy Director

313 North Figueroa Street, Room 806 Los Angeles, California 90012 TEL (213) 240-8117 • FAX (213) 975-1273 www.lapublichealth.org

Dear Current Resident.

Your household has been randomly selected to participate in this year's Los Angeles County Health Survey. The Los Angeles County Department of Public Health is conducting the survey, as we do every two years, to learn more about the health of county residents. The results of the survey are of great value in our efforts to promote and protect the health of all who live in Los Angeles County.

Within the next few weeks, a telephone interviewer working on our behalf will be calling your household and will select one adult to participate in the survey. We hope that when our interviewer calls, the adult selected will take the time to participate in the survey. If we happen to call at an inconvenient time, we will be happy to call back.

We are not selling anything or asking for money. Please be assured that all answers to the survey will remain absolutely confidential and will not be identified with your household in any way. Please also note that having your telephone number listed on the "Do Not Call" list does not exclude you from this survey, as we are a government agency charged with protecting your health.

Your household is very special because it was selected totally at random and is part of a scientific sample representing all households in Los Angeles County. While participation is voluntary, it is important that each selected household participates so that the survey accurately represents a cross-section of all the various kinds of people living in the county.

If you have any questions, please call the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health, Office of Health Assessment and Epidemiology at (213) 240-7785, or see our website: <u>www.lapublichealth.org/ha</u>.

Thank you very much for your assistance.

Sincerely,

Jma han & Fielding no

Jonathan E. Fielding, M.D., M.P.H. Director and Health Officer



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Gloria Molina First District Yvonne B. Burke Second District Zev Yaroslavsky Third District Don Knabe Fourth District Michael D. Antonovich Fifth District

親愛的居民:

您的家庭被隨機選取參加今年的洛杉磯縣健康調查。本調查由洛 杉磯縣公共衛生處舉辦,每兩年一次,以便了解縣内居民的健康 狀況。調查結果對我們促進及保護洛杉磯縣全體居民的健康有極 大幫助。

在未來數週内,我們的電話調查人員會打電話到您家,並選取您 家中一位成人參加調查。希望我們的調查人員打電話給您時,被 選取的成人能抽空接受調查。若我們來電時您不方便接聽,我們 樂意改天再與您聯絡。

我們並非向您推銷任何產品或索取金錢。我們保證,調查的全部 答案絕對保密,並且不會洩露任何您和您家人的相關資料。請注 意,不會因為您的電話號碼列在"請勿聯絡"的名單上而被排除 在調查之外,因為我們是負責保護您的健康的政府機構。

由於您的家庭是被隨機選取的,所以您以及其他被隨機選取的家 庭可以代表洛杉機縣内的所有家庭。儘管參與調查與否完全由您 決定,我們仍希望每一個被選取的家庭都能夠參與調查,以便準 確地反映居住在縣内的各類人群的健康狀況。

若有任何疑問,請致電洛杉磯縣公共衛牛處衛牛評估及流行病學 辦公室,電話:(213)240-7785;或瀏覽本部門網頁: www.lapublichealth.org/ha •

感謝您的合作!

誠懇地,

Jina han & Fielding no

Jonathan E. Fielding, M.D., M.P.H. 主任兼衛生官員

현재 입주자 님:

귀댁은 금년도 로스앤젤레스 카운티 건강 설문조사에 참여하시도록 무작위로 선정되었습니다. 로스앤젤레스 카운티 보건국은 카운티 주민들의 건강에 대해 더 잘 이해하기 위해 2년마다 설문조사를 실시하고 있습니다. 설문조사 결과는 로스앤젤레스 카운티에 거주하는 모든 주민들의 건강을 증진하고 보호하는 저희의 임무수행에 있어서 중대한 자료가 됩니다.

앞으로 수주 내에 저희를 대신하여 조사를 실시하는 전화 설문조사요원이 귀 가정에 전화를 드려서 설문조사에 참여하실 어른 한 분을 선정할 것입니다. 저희 설문조사요원이 전화를 드릴 때 선정된 분께서 시간을 내셔서 이 조사에 참여하시기를 부탁드립니다. 불편한 시간에 전화를 드린 경우, 다시 전화를 드릴 것입니다.

저희는 무엇을 팔거나 금전을 요구하는 것이 아닙니다. 설문조사에 대한 모든 답변은 절대 비밀로 유지되며 어떤 식으로든 귀댁의 신분이 밝혀지지 않을 것입니다. 저희는 주민의 건강 보호의 임무를 부여받은 정부기관이므로 귀 가정의 전화번호가 "Do Not Call" 목록에 등재되어 있더라도 본 설문조사에서 제외되지 않음을 양지하십시오.

귀댁은 전적으로 무작위로 선출되었으며 로스앤젤레스 카운티 내의 모든 가정들을 대표하는 과학적 표본이므로 매우 중요합니다. 물론 참여는 자발적인 것이지만, 선정된 각 가정이 참여함으로써 설문조사가 카운티 내에 거주하는 다양한 모든 주민들의 단면을 정확히 나타내는 것이 중요합니다.

질문이 있으시면, (213) 240-7785번의 로스앤젤레스 카운티 보건국 보건방역실로 연락하시거나 다음 웹사이트를 방문하십시오: www.lapublichealth.org/ha.

협조하여 주시기를 부탁드립니다.

감사합니다!

Jina man & Fielding m

Jonathan E. Fielding, M.D., M.P.H. 디렉터 겸 보건담당관

Kính gửi Quý Vị Cư Dân,

Hộ gia đình quý vị đã được lựa chọn ngẫu nhiên để tham gia Cuộc Thăm Dò Ý Kiến về Sức Khỏe của Quận Los Angeles (Los Angeles County Health Survey) trong năm nay. Sở Y Tế Cộng Đồng Quận Los Angeles (Los Angeles County Department of Public Health) đang tiến hành cuộc thăm dò ý kiến được tổ chức hai năm một lần này để tìm hiểu thêm về tình trạng sức khỏe của các cư dân trong quận. Kết quả của cuộc thăm dò ý kiến rất có giá trị trong việc giúp chúng tôi khuyến khích và bảo vê sức khỏe cho tất cả các cư dân Quân Los Angeles.

Trong vài tuần tới, một phỏng vấn viên qua điện thoại sẽ thay mặt cho chúng tôi gọi tới nhà quý vị và sẽ chọn một người lớn tham gia cuộc thăm dò ý kiến này. Chúng tôi hy vọng rằng khi phỏng vấn viên gọi tới, người lớn được lựa chọn sẽ dành thời gian để tham gia. Nếu chúng tôi lỡ gọi tới vào thời điểm không thuận tiên, chúng tôi sẽ sẵn sàng gọi lai sau.

Chúng tôi không chào bán bất kỳ thứ gì và cũng không yêu cầu quý vị quyên góp tiền. Xin quý vị an tâm rằng tất cả các câu trả lời thăm dò ý kiến đều sẽ được tuyệt đối giữ kín và sẽ hoàn toàn không để lộ danh tánh của gia đình quý vị. Cũng xin lưu ý rằng nếu số điện thoại nhà quý vị có tên trong danh sách "Cấm Gọi" ("Do Not Call"), quý vị vẫn có thể tham gia cuộc thăm dò ý kiến này vì chúng tôi là cơ quan chính phủ có trách nhiệm bảo vệ sức khỏe cho quý vi.

Hộ gia đình quý vị là nhân tố đặc biệt vì được tuyển chọn hoàn toàn ngẫu nhiên và là một phần trong mẫu đại diện khách quan cho tất cả các hộ gia đình trong Quận Los Angeles. Mặc dù việc tham gia là tự nguyện, nhưng để cuộc thăm dò ý kiến phản ánh chính xác tất cả các thành phần cư dân khác nhau trong quân, điều quan trọng là mỗi hộ gia đình được lựa chọn cần phải tham gia.

Nếu quý vị có thắc mắc, xin liên lạc với Sở Y Tế Cộng Đồng Quận Los Angeles, Văn Phòng Đánh Giá Sức Khỏe và Dịch Tễ (Office of Health Assessment and Epidemiology) tại số (213) 240-7785, hoặc tới trang mạng điện toán của chúng tôi tại: www.lapublichealth.org/ha.

Xin cám ơn sự giúp đỡ của quý vị.

Trân trong.

Jina man & Fielding m

Jonathan E. Fielding, M.D., M.P.H. Giám Đốc Kiêm Viên Chức Y Tế